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CHAIR KANE: " .(gavel). .. I'd like to call to order the Council's Budget and Finance
Committee meeting... for Tuesday, January 31 S\ 2006. For the record, we have in
attendance for this afternoon, Members Tavares, Pontanilla, Molina, Johnson, Carroll,
and Kane. Excused is Committee Member Mateo. Members ...thank you for being here
this afternoon. We have a very full agenda with some ... ah, what looks to be some pretty
critical issues. So, appreciate your attendance this afternoon.
· .. Before we go any further, the Chair would like to recognize public testimony at this
time. The Chair will. . .leave it open for, probably the first half-an-hour of the meeting,
and then we'll go ahead and close it up, Members, without objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. First to testify, we have Mr. Steve Goldstein.
NOTE:

Pause while Mr. Goldstein approached the podium.

CHAIR KANE: ... If you can, please state your name for the record. And if you represent an
organization, please state that as well. We'll provide you with three minutes and an
additional minute to conclude your comments. And please, again, state your name.
· .. And please remain at the podium, we may have questions for your testimony. And I
apologize if it's "stein" or "stine". And I'll let you-MR. GOLSTEIN: "Stein". Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Goldstein, you have the floor.

TESTIMONY. ..
MR. GOLDSTEIN: My name is Steve Goldstein, and I represent
Kula Community
Association, specifically, the Health and Safety Committee thereof. I also represent
Janet Renner and her masters swim teams and .. .I also represent the, my early morning
Kaunoa water aerobics class.
· .. Ladies and gentlemen of the ...BF ... Committee ... today, we have the opportunity to
fund the remedy ... for major, long-standing problems in the Up country pool heating
system. The Mayor, Keith Regan, John Buck all agree that this is a top priority.
Members of the PED Committee, especially Member Tavares and Chairperson Johnson,
have been very supportive of fixing this problem over the past several months. The
situation is, simply... the Upcountry pool is often too cold for swimming. Repairs of the
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heat pumps have been ongoing and costly hand-aids. Only three of the six heat pumps
are currently working. The Park [sic} Department agrees that heat pumps need to be
replaced. And the Parks Department agrees that heater maintenance is critically
important.
... Background... the original heat pumps were incorrectly selected without benefit of
professional engineering and improbably, improperly installed eight years ago. They
have never worked as promised. Solution--replace the heat pumps with gas heaters, they
are more reliable and cost-effective versus heat pumps, especially Up country.
Eventually, add wind-abatement deflectors. Do the entire job right this time. It is
critically important that funding is sufficient to cover the following. One, a licensed,
professional engineering company to plan, engineer, and design the project, and to
specify the new heaters. Two, a reliable equipment contractor to supply the heaters.
Three, a licensed, professional contractor to install the system. Four, a contract with a
reliable energy supplier, which will include ongoing maintenance of the heaters. And,
five, a timetable which will have Upcountry swimmers in warm water as soon as
possible. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Goldstein.
Ms. Tavares?

Members, any questions for the testifier?

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you. Thank you for being here and for having
such an interest in this particular issue, particular [sic} with the Upcountry pool. In your
testimony, you said in the "Background" section that original heat pumps were
incorrectly selected without the benefit of professional engineering, and improperly
installed eight years ago. Where did you get that particular information?
MR. GOLDSTEIN: The information came from an analysis that was done by the Gas Company,
as requested by John Buck.
And the respect, the specific reference to
incorrect. .. engineering and placement is that. .. the, as I understand the, the principle
of a heat pump is that it draws ... warm air from, warm ambient air from the environment
and puts it into the pool, and takes cold air out ofthe pool and puts it into the ambient air.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. GOLDSTEIN: The placement of the heaters, the pump, the heat pumps are such that the
cold air that was drawn our of the pool were sent up ... up ... six or eight feet, bounced off
of the ceiling, and was drawn right back into the heat pump. So what you were doing
was taking cold air and, and supplying cold air and supplying cold air instead of the
warm air that was supposed to have been... supposed to have been pulled into the pool.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Are you aware that, of any conversations with the
original design team that worked on that pool?
MR. GOLDSTEIN: Am I aware that there--3-
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
MR. GOLDSTEIN: --any? I'm not aware of that. No.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. GOLDSTEIN: Sure.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions for the testifier?
... Chair has a couple of questions for you, Mr. Goldstein.
MR. GOLDSTEIN: Sir?
CHAIR KANE: Can you tell me when... and I notice in your testimony that you represent the
signers of350 ... signatures for a petition.
MR. GOLDSTEIN: Right.
CHAIR KANE: We don't, I don't believe we have a copy, and I looked in our records. We
don't have a copy of the petition, but. .. do you know when you went out and got those
signatures? Just a time frame.
MR. GOLDSTEIN: The signatures were, were ... gotten between, I would say the first of
September and maybe the first of November. And the petitions were given to the Parks
and Economic Development Committee. And they have those ... they have those
petitions.
me, from your experience, when you started to
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Also ... can you
raise this issue ...with the County or specifically-MR. GOLDSTEIN: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: --the Councilor the Administration?
MR. GOLDSTEIN: Sure. 1. . .let me see if I can remember this. I would, I think it was
sometime the end of July, sometime, yeah, probably around the end of July that. . .I
contacted Charmaine, and I contacted John Buck.
And the Parks Department
and ... John Buck of the Parks Department along with Marian Feenstra, along
Kiko ...Keith Regan from the Mayor's Office came out and did a site inspection of the
pool.
... It's, I, I, I wish I had this, the schedule. But it was sometime in September. .. early
September. And... the report that I got back from that meeting is, is basically the essence
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of what I have on this paper today. That they agreed that there was problem; that it was,
that the, the .. .it had been an ongoing problem and a costly repairs problem; that the
original selection of heat pumps was not bay...was not made on a rational basis .
. . . The ex, actually, what I think I, I remember being told is that the ... the in, installation
contractor was the same person who recommended the particular pump. And it was
more at the convenience, more that, more of the ... convenience of the installation
contractor that he happened to have that particular pump on hand, rather than the fact that
this was the perfect pump for this situation. And they, the, the consensus was that
something needed to be done, that it hadn't, it had to be done correctly, and that there
were other things that we could also do to mitigate the, the condition, the, the weather
conditions ...Upcountry.
CHAIR KANE: And-MR. GOLDSTEIN: Meaning, the wind and the cold-CHAIR KANE: Yeah, and that's part of your testimony. Thank you.
MR. GOLDSTEIN: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: The other question I had--so, just to clarify, by the end of July... that was the
first. .. time. And so following that, that's when you had site inspection and then a
determination-MR. GOLDSTEIN: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: --and that-MR. GOLDSTEIN:

August. Right.

July,

CHAIR KAJ\i"E: And then,
was a top priority

that time frame, the Mayor, Keith Regan,
back then?

Buck agreed

it

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Yes. Db-huh.
CHAIR KANE: Are you aware that there was 300,000 dollars that was put into a fund that
provided monies to fix this problem?
MR. GOLDSTEIN: This is what I'm aware of--um ...there was a, a very smart decision on
somebody's part that. .. funding that would have gone for trailers, for, for Up country,
Department of Motor Vehicles, was not. .. was not necessary because we found some
space in another facility Up country. That freed up funds ... which then could be used for
other purposes Up country. And I'm hoping that those are the funds that were, are going
to be used to, to solve this problem finally.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. Well, I thank you for your chronology. It helps clear up a lot of
standing issues that some of the Members may have. Thank you, Mr. Goldstein.
MR. GOLDSTEIN: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any... other testimony at this time?
MS. SAKAMOTO: No, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
· .. Sir, would you like to testify? Yeah, go ahead and state your name for the record, and
then we'll go ahead and have you sign up after you're done with your testimony.
NOTE:

Pause while Mr. Cooper approached the podium.

CHAIR KANE: ... Just state your name for the record.
MR. COOPER: My name is Malcolm Cooper. . .live in Pukalani, down the street from the
Up country pool. I'm a Head Coach of Maui Dolphins. I also coach Maui Master Swim
Club. Maui Dolphins is an age group team .. .I'm, and I am the ... Maui Age Group
Swim Association Age Group Chair, which means I schedule the meets around the
islands, the different pools ...
· . . and run the timing system for them. In any case, here to talk about the Up country
pool, and I believe some other pools, some of 'em ... are affected by this budget issue as
well. And while this gentleman just spoke to some of the budget history of it and some
of the technical aspects of it, from my point of view as a coach, we basically don't get
kids coming to the pool when the pool is cold. It needs to be heated properly. It has not
been heated properly in winter for. .. well, as long as I've been here, which is five years.
We've had the temperature down at 72 degrees many time over the years. The masters
and the age group teams and the high school teams, which... are also up there practicing
in that pool, cover the pools with the covers that are there to fight off the cold as best we
can. We do that every night and even--when sometimes it's windy and a little bit. .. those
covers can take off like sails.
· .. That's also an issue, I know, for the guards with the County when they're trying to
cover. We've worked with the guards to help them improve the methods to cover it more
often. Still, we fight a loosing battle when the heat pumps--whether it's two of 'em
working, half of 'em working, all of 'em working... they're not able to keep the pool at a
temperature that will keep swimmers warm. And that is normally between 78 and 80
degrees. You'd be surprised how much 6 degrees, a 6 degree difference makes on a, an
8-year-old, 10-year-old, or 12-year-old body. They lose temperature within about 20,30
minutes. And they're just shivering with blue lips. I'm sure you've seen your kids do
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that at the ocean. Well, the ocean is about 76 degrees in the cold winter months. That's
4 degrees colder at times. We need to get that. .. pool heated properly. The wind
abatement will help, but get the heaters fixed. It affects not just the kids. It affects
masters programs. It affects the ... some of the elderly programs that go in there and do
water aerobics. I'm not involved with that, but I know they're, they are there, too. The
high school teams that are swimming there, they have to share the pool quite a bit. I
mean, we work very hard at it. But they also don't get their swimmers coming as often
when it's so very cold .
. . . Let's see ...regarding the petitions that. .. Mr. Kane was asking about before, I know
that they were presented Upcountry at a meeting with the Mayor in Kula in November.
So they have been presented, at least to the Mayor. I don't know ...how that would be
separate or same with the Council.
... Let's see-MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MR. COOPER: And that's ... that's pretty much what I wanna get across. It's very important
we do get these pools heated--not just this one, Sakamoto pool has been...we've had a
very mild winter this year. But we moved our masters practices, the high, the Maui High
School moved their practices from Sakamoto pool to Kokua pool because that was down
at 73 degrees for a couple of weeks, around Christmas time and just after. Like, you
know, we haven't had any rain, it's nice and warm right now, you get nice sunny days.
When that stops and the heater's not working at Sakamoto pool--haven't been on all
winter either--that's gonna get very cold. So there are improvements needed at a number
of the pools. And we all benefit by it, not just us as adults that swim there, but you that
have kids or grandkids that are going there, learning to swim. I happen to wind surf and
surf and .. .I have pulled in at least a couple people that lost their leashes. Uh ... swim
programs help those kids to keep on swimming, get a little bit stronger the water. I've
swum people back to their wind surfing equipment, it gets broken, you know, gets broken
or they just get blown off and it blows away the
MR. TAGUCHI:

minutes.

MR. COOPER: So it's a ... something that is helpful. It goes way beyond just the pools. You
know, it's important. That's it.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Coach Cooper. Members, any questions for-MR. COOPER: Yes?
CHAIR KANE: --the testifier? Mr. Pontanilla?
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Cooper, for ... that
testimony. The pools themselves, what temperatures ... are we looking at. .. when you
say "heat"?
MR. COOPER: When I say "heat", the temperatures for pools, according to high school
regulations, according to USA swimming regulations and MAGS regulations--when they
have swim meets, are supposed to be between 78 and 80 degrees. Uh...the ... skin
temperature's around 77 degrees. So when it starts getting below that, instead of... being
a comfortable skin temperature, you start taking heat out of bodies. And the smaller the
bodies are, the faster they drop.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. Thank you.
MR. COOPER: But basically 78 to 80 is the accepted temperature and what they're supposed to
be kept at.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Member Anderson, question?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Thanks for corning today.
MR. COOPER: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Do you have any experience with the Kihei pools at the
Aquatic Center?
MR. COOPER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Can you-MR. COOPER: Experience--well, experience
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Like what condition-MR. COOPER: ... running meets there-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --and, and .. .it's my understanding that they're not having
any problems with their heaters right now. But I'm just wondering what your experience
IS.

MR. COOPER: Well, I know they have other issues with that pool. It happens that my wife is
the Head Guard there. So ... yes .. .I know they are always tinkering down there to keep
things working properly and they have to call ... Ken from the Parks Department to corne
help every once in a while and keep either the filters going or work on something. But
-8-
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those have been working more recently. Urn ...not so much an issue there as long as the
heaters are working--as far as I know.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions for Coach Cooper?
... Hearing none, thank you very much for your testimony. If you can, please make sure
you Sign up.
MR. COOPER: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any other testimony... at this point? Hearing none, again,
Members, the Chair will leave it open for a little while longer. We'll go ahead and
proceed with our agenda for this afternoon. Members, Chair will direct your attention to
your first item, the agenda, BF Item Number 50, excuse me, 64, amending Fiscal Year
'06 Budget, the EP count for the Department of Police.

ITEM NO. 64:

AMENDING FY 2006 BUDGET (EP COUNT, DEPARTMENT OF POLICE)
(C.C. No. 06-5)

CHAIR KANE: I believe we do have our Chief of Police here, and is heading down for. .. as a
resource if there's any questions, Members. This Committee is in receipt of County
Communication 06-5 from our Budget Director, transmitting a proposed bill ...
. . . excuse me, entitled: a bill for an ordinance amending Fiscal Year '06 Budget for the
County of Maui as it pertains to the Department of Police. And the purpose of this
proposed bill is to increase the equivalent personnel, or EP count, in the Investigative
Services Program from 84 to 87, and decrease the EP count in the Technical and Support
Services Program from 112.8 to 109.8. Members, with us this afternoon also we have
our Budget Director, Mr. Lloyd Ginoza. Mr. Ginoza, good afternoon.
you can provide
us with some opening remarks on this item?
MR. GINOZA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Members ...three employees of the Technical and
Support Services Program of the Police Department were transferred to the Investigative
Services Program. However, the equivalent personnel count for the three employees
were not correctly transferred in the Mayor's proposed 2006 Budget. So the Fiscal Year
2000 ... 2006 Budget did not properly reflect the EP count. The request is to amend the
Fiscal Year 2006 Budget to correct this error by decreasing the EP count for the
Technical and Support Services Program from 112.8 to 109.8, and by increasing the EP
count for the Investigative Services Program from 8... 84 to 87. Mr. Chair, a
representative of the Police Department is available to provide additional information or
to answer any questions you or the Committee may have.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Ginoza or for our Chief of Police,
Mr. Phillips? Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. Chief.. just to re-verify, the positions
are ... are already warm positions, there's people already performing the work for the
Department?
CHIEF PHILLIPS: Yes, they are.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, so we're just looking at doing housekeeping of EP counts ... no
changes to your funding and your programs or anything else. It's just a ...
. . . perfunctory...require, request on your part for us to get your numbers squared in the
appropriate divisions.
CHIEF PHILLIPS: Yes, we basically reorganized... these are the evidence specialists and
evidence technician that used to report under our Records Division in Support Services.
And we found out it was kind of cumbersome for callouts because ... typically the
callouts are by our Investigative Services, the CID mainly, Criminal Investigation
Division. Under the old system, they would have to ... a request would be made to the
Commander of Criminal Investigation Division. He would have to call Records and
request that their records manager callout the evidence technician. So it just, this saves
some time and-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
CHIEF PHILLIPS: --some agony for the records manager. .. to, doesn't get those type of calls
anymore. So they work directly for Investigative Services, where it makes more sense.
So it's ... basically, just kind of a small reorganization.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for that, Chief.
KANE: Thank you. Any further questions ... for the
Ms. Anderson?

you, Mr. Chairman.
or for our Budget Director?

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I just wanted to clarify so I understand
what you said. Basically, you're just changing their titles and your not really... going to
end up with a deficit in Technical and Support Services.
CHIEF PHILLIPS: No, it won't, we're not changing titles. We're just moving the positions
from one program to another. So there's, that's actually the only change. There's no
change in, in funding ...where, I mean... titles and it won't leave ... Technical Services in
a deficit.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Any further questions? Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, you stated that this should have been in the description
for the 2006 Budget proposal but it was somehow left out?
CHIEF PHILLIPS: I think it's in the details.
MR. GINOZA: May I answer that?
CHAIR KANE: Please.
MR. GINOZA: The, the positions are in the correct programs within the Detail Budget.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Db-huh.
MR. GINOZA: But it's just the EP counts were not correctly stated.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, so in the Budget Ordinance itself, doesn't. .. reflect
the ... correct EP count.
MR. GINOZA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. 'Cause this was something proposed in your '06
Budget, not something that was a mistake from years ago.
NOTE:

Silence.

CHIEF PHILLIPS: ... No, we just, it, it's not from years ago.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
It was proposed about ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... Okay.
CHIEF PHILLIPS: ... and I think it's in the Budget Details, but it just didn't show it in that-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: In the ...
CHIEF PHILLIPS: --EP count.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: In the Budget Ordinance itself.
CHIEF PHILLIPS: I think we made this, initially, as a trial, on a trial basis in.. .1ate '04.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
CHIEF PHILLIPS: I think. And then, so for the, for the following budget, it would have been
the time that we made the change.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions ... for the Department or for the Director?
... Hearing none, Members, Chair's recommendation is to move forward with the bill for
an ordinance, making the amendments, and filing of the Communication.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Second.
CHAIR KANE: It's been moved and seconded--Members Hokama and Pontanilla. Discussion?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No discussion, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Hearing none, Members, all in favor say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Opposed?
... Okay, let the record show it's eight, zero, and one excused, Mr. Mateo.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Johnson, Molina, PontaniHa,
Tavares, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Mateo.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of bill and FILING of
communication.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you very much. Chief, thank you. Thank you for your attendance
this afternoon.
CHIEF PHILLIPS: You're welcome. Thanks.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, we're moving on to the next item on our agenda, on Page 2,
Item Number 63, amending the Fiscal Year '06 Budget regarding swimming pool
improvements.
ITEM NO. 63:

AMENDING FY 2006 BUDGET (SWIMMING POOL IMPROVEMENTS)
(C.c. No. 06-4)

CHAIR KANE: This Committee is in receipt of County Communication Number 06-4 from the
Budget Director, transmitting a proposed bill entitled: a bill for an ordinance amending
the Fiscal Year 2006 Budget for the County of Maui as it pertains to capital improvement
projects. Members, the purpose of the proposed bills ... excuse me. The purposes of the
proposed bill are to, in the General Fund, first, decrease the appropriation in the
Makawao-Pukalani-Kula Community Plan District for the Makawao Division of Motor
Vehicle and Licensing, DMVL satellite office, by 165,000 dollars. Two, decrease the
appropriation in the Kihei-Makena Community Plan District for the Kihei DMVL
satellite office by 160,000 dollars.
Three, increase the appropriation in the
Makawao-Pukalani-Kula Community Plan District for Upcountry Swimming Pool
Improvements by 125,000 dollars.
Four, increase the appropriation in the
Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan District by 176,000 dollars for Sakamuto, Sakamoto
Pool Improvements, Kahului Pool Improvements, and War Memorial Stadium Complex
Improvements. And, five, increase the appropriation in Kihei-Makena Community Plan
District by 22,000 dollars for Kihei Community Center and Aquatic Center
Improvements. And finally, six, increase the appropriation in the West Maui Community
Plan District by 2,000 dollars for Lahaina Aquatic Center Improvements. Mr. Ginoza,
opening remarks?
MR. GINOZA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. With the assistance of the Departments of... Department
of Parks and Recreation...the Makawao Division of Motor Vehicle and Licensing
satellite office was located in the Hannibal Tavares Community Center; and the Kihei
Division of Motor Vehicle and Licensing satellite office
the ... Kihei Community
Center, which resulted in an aggregate unspent amount of 325,000. The request is to
amend the Fiscal Year 2006 Budget to appropriate 125,000 of the available funds for
Upcountry Swimming Pool Improvements; 176,000 for Sakamoto Pool Improvements,
Kahului Pool Improvements, and War Memorial Stadium Complex Improvements;
22,000 for the Kihei Community Center and Aquatic Center Improvements; and 2,000
dollars for Lahaina Aquatic Center Improvements. Mr. Chair, we have a representative
of the Department of Parks and ... Parks and Recreation available to provide any
additional information and to answer any questions you or the Committee may have.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you. This afternoon, we also have with us, Members, the Deputy
Director ofthe Parks ... Department, Mr. John Buck. Mr. Buck, good afternoon.
MR. BUCK: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Why don't you go ahead and provide us with some additional opening remarks,
Mr. Buck, before we proceed with the Q and A in this area.
MR. BUCK: As you probably most aware, especially those who attended some ofthe Parks and
Economic Development meetings, this topic of the swimming pool heater situation is, is,
is, been a ...
· .. a lot of concerns. It's not something that we're all doing last minute.
· .. Some point in time, we've had problems with all the heaters. And in the last, say,
maybe from about. .. after winter time last year, we've been working out, trying to figure
out. .. come up with a remedy. And so we've gone out and asked various ... various
engineers and assorted experts to come and take a look at what our problems are as far as
from the manufacturers of a lot of the heaters, the gas-fired heaters, ot the .. .in regards to
Up country pool, as far as having it, actually having a consultant take a look at this set up.
I will say that with the Upcountry pool heaters ...
· .. we, from, from about. .. about a year out or before the warranty expired on the ...the
heat pumps, we were experiencing some problems already. And to have the warranty
work done, we had to ship the heat pumps back to Florida. And I think the cost of freight
at that time was 4 or 5 thousand dollars to do it each time we needed to do warranty
work. Since then, and .. .in the Parks and Economic Development Committee, I, I
believe they got a, a printout of what we did over the last three or four years in regards to
repairs to all the heaters. We have a new supplier of energy this year. And they've made
a commitment to try to help us with...trying to get these things up and running because
if they don't, the heaters don't work, they don't sell us gas--basically what it amounts
to. So they've been really diligent trying to work with us. I think they're experiencing
some of the same frustrations as, as, as we are. But we're coming along and hopefully
were gonna get some of their problems solved. What our plan is for the Upcountry one is
to replace the entire, the ...heat pumps themselves. The ones that are still working, we're
gonna have 'em evaluated. If they're still pretty good, we, what we may do is that the
Kihei pool was ... set up to, in the future, to put up heat pumps. So we may transfer those
heat pumps that are still working down to the Kihei pool just as a backup, a heating
system for, for the system down there. I, I, I can't explain why the Upcountry heaters
have never. .. they've worked at first, but we, you know, especially the last few years,
they haven't been working properly. They've been on and off in repairs. The only thing
I can think of as far as the Lahaina pool, Sakamoto pool. . .is that the fact that those
heaters were not originally designed in the pool specs. So they were basically installed
after the pool was built. So they, that mayor may not contribute to some of the problems
that were had. It's just like buying a call and installing air conditioning later in your
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car--that sometimes you do have problems. That's ... that might explain why we're
having some of the problems with... say, Sakamoto and the Lahaina pooL The Kihei
pool and the new Wailuku pool were designed with heaters in 'em already. So we've had
very little problems. We, we're still having some problems, but not the magnitude that
we're experiencing with the other pools.
CHAIR KANE: ... Thank you, Mr. Buck. Okay, Members, you have the request before you.
The Chair will open it up for questions. I will start with Ms. Tavares, and then
Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, I would love to get into a really
lengthy discussion about the pool heaters and what's happening with them and what's the
cause and all this kind of stuff. But I think what we would like to do is to make sure, or
to ensure that we can address this problem as quickly as possible. I would like to know,
first of all, on the Budget amendment. . .if we can have some explanation--see, on Page 1,
the Up country Swimming Pool Improvements, the 125,000 dollars ...what does that
include, the 125? Then, on each of the subsequent places where there is a addition, like
the Sakamoto, Kahului, War Memorial Complex, whatever, I would like an explanation
of what that will entail or what is included in that particular price. If we could have that
rundown from the Department, please?
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And if we can also have a follow-up from the Department to put it
in writing as well, since it seems like there's a lot of stuff that needs to get explained.
Mr. Buck, are you prepared to respond?
NOTE:

Silence.

MR. BUCK: ... I, I do have a breakdown that ... (end ojtape, start lB) . .. the figures to go to
various pools that we had some ideas as far as what it may cost us and what we'd like to
do. And I can have the liberty, I do have that cost breakdown with me.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, why don't you go
MR. BUCK: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Why don't, you have, you have 15 copies? You have enough copies to-MR. BUCK: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We'll have Staffhelp you. And then you can go ahead and get right into
it.
NOTE:

Silence.
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MR. BUCK: ... What we're planning to do ... well, I'll start with the Upcountry pool first--was
to install .. .
. . . gas heaters along with the necessary fixtures to replace the existing... heat pump
system. And ... we are currently working in trying to obtain a, PE, Physical Engineer, to
help us with the design so it's done properly. Uh... and ... when we-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Excuse me, Mr. Chairman? Now-CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Now that we have this in writing in front of us, I think that
this gives us sufficient information, and if I can just follow-up with some other questions
instead of having him just go through the whole list that's in front of us now?
CHAIR KANE: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: On the Upcountry swimming pool, how close are you or
where are you in the process of actually having the new heaters and fixtures and filter
system installed? Where are you in that process?
MR. BUCK: We're trying, we're, right now... seeking out to obtain an engineer to do the design
work.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, so that, does that entail a ...RFP for an engineer?
MR. BUCK: '" That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So that hasn't started yet?
MR. BUCK: We're

the process oflooking, looking ... with who's available to do it, yeah.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. So what is your
you get your
engineer. . .in there to spec out whatever it is, what, what are you looking at as a time-line
before we can expect 78 degree temperature the Upcountry pool?
MR. BUCK: I can't really give you the time-line. I do know there like a, talking to the supplier,
there's a two-month ship time for the heater. So we're not talking much before, if we
were to order 'em today, not much before April.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So we're looking possibly at ...
MR. BUCK: Try during-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... next summer.
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MR. BUCK: Probably during the summer, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: '" Okay. Urn ... on that list, your War Memorial Stadium
Complex Improvements has nothing to do with the swimming pool heaters or anything
like that. What is ...why is that included in here?
NOTE:

Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... 'Cause you have replace transformers, walkway lights,
electrical panels, irrigation pump station upgrade, and plumbing system upgrade for a
total of 81,000 dollars.
MR. BUCK: There was, needed some repairs to .. .it's an ongoing constant battle of trying to get
the things up and running. And the Department felt that with the, some of the additional
funding ... that we, in the transfer, that we'll be able to do, continue to do the upgrade and
the work.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. So, Mr. Buck, can you share with us that Countywide
Parks Improvement Fund--what are the amounts that already are spoken for and what is
the bal. .. the balance of that account and what it's gonna be used for? We did receive
from Kalbert Young, in November. .. a listing of the contracts that were let using this
index code for the Countywide Parks Improvements. And at that time, I believe there
was a balance of 189,000 dollars. So could you kind of update us on the use of that
funding?
MR. BUCK: Currently, we've spent approximately 162,000. And that's not including the
40,000 that was committed to the Haiku Field House, which was one of the provisos.
Urn ...we did a... some fence, a fencing project on, in Molokai at 18 hundred. We're
doing a fencing project, it's completed or it's about, it's ...pretty close to completed to do
a fencing project and repair. .. at almost 20,000. We've spent and I'm still trying to
figure out why it came out of the "Countywide", but we spent almost 90,000 to do the
new parking lot or the temporary parking lot at the Lahaina Civic Center. Uh ... we
needed some additional funding to do some finishing up some of the ADA accessibility
projects for this year 'cause it. .. the contracts were a little short, about 10,000.
Approximately 25,000 for One Alii Park. We had the safety netting at the golf course,
that was storm damaged. And that was approximately 11,000. And then, we had to pay
some fees to the State Health, at 800 dollars, for the cesspool project. And we spent
about, approximately 55 hundred at the request. .. to some in, ceiling fans at the Paia
Community Center. So we spent approximately 162,000.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, that's the attachment that was, I mean, that's part of
the thing that was passed out to us today.
MR. BUCK: Correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And... so that 162,000 is what has been encumbered by
contract or work completed to-date out of that 300,000?
MR. BUCK: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... (inaudible) . ..
MR. BUCK: My understanding, there's 40,000 as a proviso for the Haiku Field House-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. BUCK: --which is not showing as an expenditure-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
MR. BUCK: --as of yet.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So what--of the balance of that account, what is that
supposed to be used for, or what plans ... did they have or did you folks have to use those
funds?
MR. BUCK: Various backstops, fencing replacement projects. When fences fall down, we use
the "Countywide" for that. Urn ... on a dugout, when we a storm damage, the dugout
blows over... that's, use, we use those funds for that. If we're gonna go out, especially
with a bid. There's various ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. BUCK: . . . items. What we do every year is we ask the Districts what kind of
improvements they would like to see in the districts. And then we take all those requests
into the districts and, you know, like the fencing project, maybe replacing picnic table,
the... picnic tables, barbeques, fencing, tennis court resurfacing--and that's kind of all
lumped together into the "Countywide". It's the stuff that the Districts would like to see
done. You know, we just kind of put it in, in the "Countywide". And some of the
projects that we're doing now are, is at the request of Districts from a couple years ago.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh. So when this issue of the pool heaters came up, did
you folks re-Iook at your priority list for the use of these funds, this 300 ... or the 300,000
dollars ... appropriation?
MR. BUCK: We, when the problems with ...not ...well. .. yes, but, what we were gonna do is,
originally, we were trying to get the information together, what the costs were gonna be,
and we were gonna submit it for the 2007 Budget, that was the, our original plan. When
starting working with Finance as far as the DMV locations that they were gonna...put
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the sites at some of our parks. In talking with them, one of the issues was, was trying to
do it in a timely manner and try to stay within all the Codes. And we were looking at
couple of the projects two years away just by, if we had to follow,just the, the permitting
process and the Codes we had to violate and we would end up, instead of a nice trailer
where people could sit inside, a nice building where they can sit inside, some of the
discussions that had would be, something like, would be a lot smaller building that,
whereas the, some ofthe customers may have to wait. .. wait outside in the elements.
· .. So with that in mind, we thought it might be prudent, then, to ...
· .. move some of the users groups to different facilities and... use those rooms for the
DMV. And we had talked about maybe replace, using the trailers as a replacement. But
then this is when, about the same part of the discussion is when the, the urgencies of
the ... pool heaters came up and we figure we would use those funds to replace it.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... Okay. Thank you for that explanation. Mr. Chairman,
what's ... you know, what I had been thinking about since the ...beginning when this
came up ... on the budget amendment that is provided to us, that instead of breaking out
all of the separate pools in the, in the districts, was to take the monies that they needed for
the pools and put that money into "Countywide" so that they could go forward and start
the work as soon as possible. And... that would be kind of like, like a direction I would
like the Committee to, to consider... that it probably be more expeditious if we did it that
way than to wait for this approval and two readings to get started to put the engineer on
board. If they haven't already done it, if they at least know that that money's gonna
come into "Countywide", they can seek the ... appropriation, or they can seek the ... or
put out the RFP to do that engineering for the Up country pool. They could start, you
know, today, if this passes out. .. and not wait until we actually have a formal and
adopted "Countywide" increase or this budget amendment.
KANE: Thank you for your comments, Ms. Tavares. Ms. Anderson, you have
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr.

floor.

'VB("'HHH"'H.

· .. You know, as I recall, the urgency about these pool heaters was brought to our
attention during the last budget.
CHAIR KANE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So it's not like it's just something that's just come up.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And there were several of us who tried to get funding to
take care of it back then.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And ...
. . . (sigh) . .. You know, I could dance around this, but. .. we are under a time constraint,
so pardon me if I'm not polite. But. .. your, you're asking to take 176,000 dollars away
from the Kihei-Makena Community Plan District in order to fund improvements
somewhere else. And the reason you're doing that is because you have determined--and
I, I don't mean "you" specifically, Mr. Buck--but it, it was determined by the
Administration that rather than using the funds for the trailers for the DMV as was
originally intended, that it would be appropriate to use a room at the Kihei Community
Center for the DMV ...thus, leaving that 176,000 dollars available. And I have a big
problem with that because ...what they've done, Mr. Chairman, is taken over the large
meeting room at the Kihei Community Center--which was fully utilized by community
groups and by classes that this County puts on. And they were transferred, those classes
were transferred to the ... the room down at the pool. There's also a large room down a
the pool. Now ... on the surface, that might look like an okay thing. But every time
there's a swim meet, that room is no longer available ... at the pool. And I have ... been
the recipient of many angry phone calls at home by Aunties ...that are extremely upset
because they have been given the runaround. They go to meet for their regular hula class,
senior hula... and they're told, no, you have to go down to the pool. They go down to the
pool, no, we're having a swim meet today, you can't meet here. So then they're ...jostled
all around. And I have talked to a staff member down there who does scheduling. And
she wasn't really notified that this was gonna happen. So now she is in the ... unfortunate
position to try to find ... accommodations for people who would normally be meeting in
this room. Some of those accommodations are not appropriate for seniors to do hula in a
non-air-conditioned room, let's say. So I would like Mr. Buck or someone to address that
for us, to see if--and I did mention this to Mr. Buck, in passing, a week or so ago. And he
was kind of shocked to hear that there was a problem. So I'm wondering if anybody has
addressed this, because ...

gonna quote: why you guys shut us out? That's from a senior citizen...taking

NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: '"
Mr. Buck, are you prepared to respond? And before he does,
Ms. Anderson, because this deals with the transferring of funds for the Division of Motor
Vehicle and Licensing, we also have the Director of Finance here. He may have some
additional comment in this area. Thank you. Mr. Buck, are you prepared to respond?
MR. BUCK: Yes, Mister. .. Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Proceed.
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MR. BUCK: When we started talking about the possibility of accommodating the ... DMV at
our two facilities, we started this back in October. And in October. ..because the
schedule wasn't available for, yet. ..because of our permitting process, that. .. they start
permitting 2006 for. .. classes and stuff, they go by quarters--that we went ahead and
started letting everybody know that we were gonna make the, the change from the large
meeting room ...to the Aquatic Center down at. .. the pool. At that time, we also had
contacted the, the swimming organizations. And what we do, like we do for any of our
facilities when there's a, a... prior scheduled event, that we issue permits to the
swimming community based on those times. So everybody, back in October and
November and December, knew that there was gonna be a change. What happened, as
far as, I think what Councilmember Anderson's referring to is that on January 13 th ,
Friday the 13 th , there was an MIL meet scheduled at the Kihei pool. And they had a
permit to start at 3 o'clock--'cause that was based on the information that was provided to
me back in October.
And, yes, I was unaware at the time when
Councilmember Anderson had approached me on it because I knew that there were
certain days that we already had scheduled out, let everybody know that those were
gonna be the days--'cause we try to do it so much, far in advance 'cause other
arrangements could be made, like we do when we have special events in any other, other
facilities. Apparently...well, unbeknownst to us and even the swimming people in
Aquatics, the...they had a permit with 3 o'clock, they actually went in the morning ...to
use the room which wasn't as part of the permit. It was just based on the information that
we received from everybody in October and November... when we started blocking out
times and started scheduling people. We would normally use the room, large meeting
room under the Aquatic Center. You know, so our intent wasn't to displace anybody. I
will has that the conference room, I mean the meeting room at the Kihei Aquatic Center
is also an air conditioned room. It's just that it needs, it's just that they keep it up real
high because of the fact that it's hardly ever used, we don't want the air conditioning
going on all the time. So that. .. as far as not being air conditioned, it should have been
addressed by someone going and adjusting the thermostat in there. But our intent was not
to really...kicking anybody out. As far as the, the other, the flip side of this whole thing
is I've also have received complaints from the public, are wondering why we have the
same groups using the facilities week after week after week ... yeah, 'cause they cannot
have their meetings and stuff. So we get the complaints on the other side, too. But
very, when we deal with this, we wanted to be sure that we weren't really gonna kick
anybody out. Upcountry, just moved some people around to some other facilities, who,
we have a lot of facilities Upcountry. Kihei was a little bit tight. We figure it's gonna be
tight for a while, that in the future we're planning to, we would like to put up that new
facility at the new park, was a gymnasium which will have a couple of classrooms. So
that would relieve a lot of the pressure at the Kihei Community Center for classes to
move over to the new facility when that, when we finish completing that project.
NOTE:

Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: '" Well, Mr. Buck, that's a long ways off and, and ...
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· .. You know, the comment I made about the air conditioning was not about the room at
the Aquatic Center. It's about other facilities where they're trying to farm out some of
these groups that, that ...
· .. in other words, you have 100 percent use of that meeting room ... previous to the
DMV going in. And you can't transfer that 100 percent use to the Aquatic Center
because the Aquatic Center is also using that room. So those people who cannot use the
Aquatic Center are being farmed out to other places, one of which is... a roof, basically,
no walls. So it's in the heat of the day with no air conditioning. And that was my
reference about no air conditioning.
· .. And I don't know that everybody knew. I mean, I take your word for it. But from
what I'm hearing ...there are quite a few people who didn't know. And ...
· . . including someone who does scheduling down at the Kihei Community
Center. .. who came back from vacation and found that this had been done. And ...
· .. so ... (sigh) . .. I would like to have ...
· .. more assurances that. .. that all of the people who have been meeting there... have
adequate facilities to continue meeting because, as I said, I've had some very angry
phone calls from people that don't seem to feel they're getting a fair shake.
CHAIR KANE: Ms., Ms. Anderson, would you like me to have Mr. Young ... comment as well,
since again this is a determination that they're gonna use an existing facility, therefore,
the trailers don't need to be used, therefore-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah-CHAIR KANE: --transfer of funds?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
mean, that really was, I guess, the decision of Finance,
so we should address that. But since Mr. Buck is here,
just concerned about the use
of a recreational facility for another purpose. I mean, it doesn't do us any good to go one
step forward if we're gonna take two steps back at the same time.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Good afternoon, Mr. Young. Thank you for being with us this
afternoon.
MR. YOUNG: Good afternoon, Chair Kane and Members. I'll begin by expounding on the
comments that are, that Mr. Buck has already provided and to give you a little bit more
insight into how the decision was made to relocate ... the DMV from a trailer location at
both the Upcountry and Kihei into .. .into a community center facility. Back when this
item was requested of you in the Fiscal Year '06 Budget, the plan was to acquire and
install two trailer or modular facilities at the Kihei Community Center, as well as at some
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community center in Upcountry. This was ajoint. ..project with the Department of Parks
and the Department of Finance to locate our DMVL services on County facilities.
175,000 dollars was appropriated for each location for the acquisition and installation of
these modular offices. However, in the course of trying to procure these facilities, these
part... these two particular sites--because there were other sites that were requested of the
budget, one in Lahaina and one in Wailuku. But these two particular sites, in particular
the Kihei and the ...Upcountry sites posed to create additional costs in terms of the
installation whereby a number of infrastructure measures on the locations where these
trailers would be dropped ...would, would create a situation where we ... we would not
have enough funds. It would cost more than 175,000 to locate and establish in Kihei, as
well as in Upcountry. To the degree where we had planned on... the size of the facility,
as, as Ms. Anderson had asked of us on, during the Budget deliberation, to spend some
time in terms of making it, the facilities aesthetic, you know, not looking like a modular
box .. .in essence, but as well as providing a comfortable environment with
additional. .. customer waiting space, increased capacity for services in both of these
communities. That was a dilemma that Finance faced. It was at the, sometime around
September or October time frame where ... there, there was an evaluation of this project,
as well as some of the needs of the Parks Department. So there was a three-point
issue ... ultimately, that guided the, made the decision to relocate these facilities into the
community center. The first being the added cost of the, of the project to achieve all of
our implementation goals for the DMV ...the, the projects or needs that the Parks
Department had... you know, had, had arisen in the Parks Department in terms of
funding and addressing their concerns, and lastly the issue of time. For the Upcountry
DMV, it had been closed since March. And there was a concerted effort and interest to
get it opened as soon as realistically possible. And in Kihei, the DMV is currently
located at Azeka Shopping Center. And that lease hadn't, was expected to expire on
December 31 st. And it was planned on it being, expiring on December 31 st. And
although we had anticipated establishing the Kihei DMV in a modular trailer before the
expiration of that lease, given the constraints of procuring and installing, we, it WOUld, it
would not have been possible to make that. ..by that time frame. So the timing was the
issue as well. As a result, given these three points, it was determined that a cooperative
effort on the part of the Parks Department, thought that they could realistically redeploy
some of the assignments for the meeting rooms. And they could, through this budget
amendment, get additional funds to meet their operational needs, it would be a win-win
for both Departments, as well as being a very cost-efficient method for the County
operations as a whole in that no additional funds would have to be procured for
either. .. for either project. Granted, there are a certain level of hardships ... that have
been placed on the Parks Department in terms of redeployment of the meeting space,
but. .. you know, to the best, to, to my knowledge, this has been very well accomplished
with the Parks Department staff. And... the Up country DMV has opened ... two weeks
now. And the Kihei location is slated to open next week. And the Azeka location will be
concluding today. So with that, Mr. Chair, I thank you for your opportunity to provide
you with background information. And I'm available for any questions. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Anderson?
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
· .. Thank you for that explanation. Could you tell me--you, you said there were three
reasons it was determined to relocate, or rather to ... ditch the modular plan and go
with... and I know you, you... you combined Upcountry and Kihei. I, I'm ...un, unless
there's problems Upcountry with meeting space, I haven't heard of it. But for that
purpose, I'm just gonna focus on Kihei right now ... and the fact that ...
· .. Well, what was the added cost that you had determined would be necessary to set up
the modulars?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Ms. Anderson. When we initially constructed these estimates for the
construction of the FY '06 Budget, this was back in February, March of 2005, it was
estimated that the cost of the trailers or these modulars would be about 150,000. And we
estimated an additional 25,000 for installation... expenses.
· .. During the time that those estimates were garnered--February--'til the time that we
tried to go and procure, which was in July, August time frame, the cost of the trailers had
slightly increased, but what was more ... of an increase was actually the installation cost.
Because, in particular, the Kihei location, we had planned on locating it. .. below the pool
complex, by that smaller parking area. Apparently, that area requires a number of
entitlement issues--like SMA permits, there's certain size restrictions and setbacks that
bumped up the cost as well as the, the, in that, that case, more importantly the time frame
in that to procure these entitlements would push us well past the ... January 1st time
frame, the time frame when the Azeka lease would expire. So ... for the Kihei location,
more so than for the Upcountry location, these added entitlement expenses drove up the
cost of the contracting, as well as the--from my, my standpoint, though, the more
important one was to, the time frame issue. I did not want it to get to a point where we,
you know, we're out of the Azeka lease and ...we did not have a alternative for DMV
services in Kihei. So ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You still
added cost you were looking at.

answered

question as to how

MR. YOUNG: For the, to, we had budget-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: For Kihei.
MR. YOUNG: Yeah, you had budgeted 175,000. Our estimates at the time, when we went in
July and August to ... to acquire and install the trailer, was about 200,000. And that's
not-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So it went up another 25,000?
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MR. YOUNG: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: To ... to add the considerations for entitlements, which I
think you should have, you know, those, all those considerations should have been made
back in January and February. If you'd done due diligence, you would have known then
that you needed to do those kind ofthings. And, you know, 25,000 ...
· .. to have a permanent place on County land.. .I don't know that that would been such a
bad investment. But as far as the time ...
· .. so you need more time for entitlements. Why couldn't you just have extended the
lease month-to-month with Azeka's until you were able to effectuate the ... the modulars
use?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Ms. Anderson. That, that is an option. In fact, the lease did expire in, on
December 31 st. And we are, we have extended the lease for a single month. The budget,
when the budget was constructed, did not, did not include for rent at Azeka's beyond
December 31 st. Because the plan was that we would have located .. .in the modular
option.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know, plans always change.
· .. We're sitting here today with changed plans. And so ... you know ... (sigh) . .. I
appreciate your explanation, but ...
· .. it, it just doesn't seem enough to, to validate .. .(sigh) . .. kicking out people that have
had long-term use of this meeting room for an entirely different purpose than what its
intended purpose is. And this seems to be a permanent move. And it seems to me
like ...
· .. I don't think the Council funded this recreational center for the purpose of DMV
· .. (end of tape, start 2A) . .. So you know, I know that you were thinking about doing
this last fall because you did mention it to me a meeting. And I said at the time . .is
the room being used? Well, we have plenty of rooms, we have two rooms and nobody
will be displaced.
· .. Well, it wasn't explained to me that this was gonna be the big meeting room that is
used constantly. And, you know, from what I'm hearing, people are being displaced.
And I wanna know what is the program for, especially going into the summer where I'm
assuming there's gonna be more swim meets. What's the plan ... to ...where will these
people go that are currently using the Aquatic room who won't be able to use it this
summer--what's the plan for them? I mean, we spend all this time and money putting
together these programs and, and encouraging people get involved in 'em, and... and
now they have no place to met. I, I'm really disturbed by this. And I'm especially
disturbed to have aunties and tutus crying on the phone to me at night.
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NOTE:

Silence.

COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: ... SO ...
. . . is there anyway that you can give us a schedule of all these meeting places and tell us
where they're going?
... I mean, what the plan really is.
MR. BUCK: ... Yes ... Councilman Anderson, we started this project back in October. And
I'm surprised that the staff member who told you that she didn't know anything about it
is the one who actually started issuing the permits back in November and December in
regards to this new change. So I would need to follow-up with her. But everybody--yes,
she went on vacation, but she did a lot of the...permitting for the groups who were using
the facility ... but before she went on vacation. So I, I'm surprised that she said that. And
maybe there was ...miscommunication with her, but this project, we started the, the
reservation process back in October. And as far as the swim meets, yes, there'll be a few
swim meets that they've blocked out, but they, the people who are using those facilities
have been given seven or eight months' notice already that. .. they, that it will be one day
here, one day there they will, not gonna be able to use it all the way up to January of
2... 2007. Uh... and.. .in most of our facilities, yes, we have regular users in all our
facilities, including the, you know, the Lahaina Civic Center on, in all our facilities. But
they'll be times when there are special events. And if somebody wants to use it during
the day that we have regular classes going on, we would like to--such as our senior lunch
programs at the Kihei Community Center and a few others ...that, the main hall--is that
we'd like to give 'em a lot of notice so they can make a, different plans for the day.
Either. .. either have it a field trip or go to a different place or, or take one day of rest.
But they've been giving ample notices. As far as the, the complaint. I know where, I
have a funny feeling that the complaint was, had to be on Friday the 13 t \ is when that,
the ... those were supposed to come in at 3 o'clock actually went in earlier. And that's
probably why they felt like they got kicked out.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: They did get kicked out ... (laughter) . ..
MR. BUCK: No, but I'm saying even Upcountry we had to make a lot of changes
to ... accommodate people. But we, we, it's not like we started, you know, two weeks
ago that we're gonna kick 'em all out. We started this pro, process when we had
discussed this, all the way back in October. And I knew that at that time that we had to
sit there and give enough people, enough notice that we were gonna make the, those,
make that change. And it was, and it was up to the ... and we had the ...meeting with the
Division Heads, the two Division Heads that were affected, impacted by this and some of
the staff members so that we could have ... a... a smoothest transition as possible. Now,
if anything come up besides that or there are complaints, that's, it's news to me. But as
far as from my understanding ...the, the transition plan should have gone--
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Smoothly.
MR. BUCK: --(inaudible}... Now, the only thing we're not doing is adding additional
programs. Urn.. .'cause we knew that we couldn't accommodate new programs or
additional programs or additional meetings ... either, at both sites. But we knew our
number one priority was to accommodate those programs that were existing. Yes, there
are hula classes. Maybe one or two had to move over to the Kenolio Recreational Center,
but there's also other hula classes, dance classes going in the same facility.
· .. And we are constantly working on, we're gonna be doing some renovations at the
Kenolio Rec Center that we maybe be able to accommodate more people because we're
turning that instead ... because of a lot of problems with complaints across the street,
we're gonna do that strictly into a recreation center where we're gonna have a lot of the
other classes and, you know, things that were there versus large, noisy parties.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Is that the room the, or the facility that doesn't have walls?
NOTE:

Silence.

MR. BUCK: .,. The ... Kenolio has the old cafeteria, which is a, you know, it's a regular
cafeteria building which needs some upgrades, what we're planning on doing. And then,
there's the open room, but that's-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's the one.
MR. BUCK: --three sides, it's three sides of the walls. Just the one side that out of the
wind ... does not have ... and, and we left it open like that, is because the people who, like
the dance classes and some others liked it because when they put the windows open, you
get the natural breeze that comes through. So ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Mr. Buck,
miscommunication. I, I don't wanna get anybody
who I spoke with.

reference, I think, there was a
trouble 'cause you obviously know

· .. I think what she said was I didn't realize this was gonna happen while I was gone on
vacation, and that there was miscommunication between Aquatics and... and her office
so that. .. people who were scheduled to go to the Aquatic's room went and then found
out somebody else was using it. So it doesn't really matter. The, the ...the point being
that. .. that this is not gonna displace people that have need for recreational space.
And ...
· .. as you said, there's people complaining right now that they wanna use the space, too,
so we obviously have a great need .. .to provide this kind of...recreational space for the
community. And I just want some assurances that there's going to be .. .ifDMV is gonna
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take this over permanently, that there's going to be adequate space to meet the needs of
the community, especially our seniors.
· .. I had another question, Mr. Chairman, then I'll yield.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What was the ...the annual lease cost for Azeka's?
NOTE:

Silence.

MR. YOUNG: ... Ms. Anderson, at the time that the, this last calendar year, January through
December, the annual lease cost was approximately 6,000 dollars a month.
· .. And it was, of course, it was slated to go up.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Mr. Hokama, followed by Ms. Johnson. And
before I recognize you, Mr. Hokama, if I may, just to take care of public testimony, is
there anybody here that wishes to testify that has not testified?
· .. Okay, seeing none, Members, without objections, we'll go ahead and close public
testimony for this meeting this afternoon.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. Mr. Hokama, thank you for your... for yielding
to that.

.. .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
Thank you, Chairman.
Obviously .. . (laughter). ..
consideration brings ... some other related issues that my colleague from South Maui has
shared with us, Mr. Chairman. But ifI may get back to, I guess,
driver that is pushing
this request today--which is the, the issue of the heaters in our, in our. .. public pools
program ...
. . . So just so we're clear, there's about 140,000 dollars left of unencumbered funds in
Countywide for parks, Budget Director? Or is the 300,000 that the Council added. .. to
the budget that was not part of the Administrative request. . .is that all encumbered... or
expended?
MR. GINOZA: Yes, it's 160,000 of encumbered funds. But there's 40,000 of restricted funds
for that proviso. So there's 100,000 remaining.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
· .. And I just ask that because I recall through my office, at least maybe half-year ago or
more about some heater-related... concerns, I guess, for the Kahului pool. And I think I
shared it with Budget Chair Kane and other Members of the Council.
CHAIR KANE: Coach Shiraishi, Spencer Shiraishi.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, that's, thank you. Yeah, that was the ... correspondence that I
was responding to. And, and Coach Shiraishi's concern about the, the heater situation.
· .. Again, you know, for me I've heard this multiple times in our budget reviews.
· .. So hearing testimony about wrong pumps, you know, we didn't, maybe, scope our,
our parameters right.
· .. That's kind of disturbing for me ... since we're looking at a lot of public monies now
to correct what our understand ...has been, bad choices on our part. And I say "our part"
as a County regarding outfitting our, our pool program. So .. .if that, that is the case, why
haven't we already implemented some kind of phasing-in programs so that there's no
impact to those meets that are schedule for, already, use ... that we have commitments
for ... especially those big meets that I know Chairman Kane has assisted your
Department, Mr. Buck, in trying to get regional meets here, big-time meets here, where
the, the, I would assume, the temperature of the pool is one of the standard requirements
that we'd be able to provide ...regulation competitive environments for our swimmers
and our guests.
· .. Why now, in almost the middle of the third quarter of this Budget. .. now we dealing
with this? You know, I understand there's a lot of, more support from swimmers, our
independent swimmers, our resident swimmers, but. . .it's not something that you and I
are just aware of.
it's ... been awhile and why haven't we already say we've taken care
Up country, we've taken care of Kahului, we need to work on our big one at Sakamoto
and do some fine-tuning at Lahaina Aquatic? Why are we still in this situation,
Mr. Buck. .. any, any... give us a philosophy or maybe that's not the Department's top
thing or... or help us understand it better, Mr. Buck, please.
MR. BUCK: Yes ... Councilmember Hokama. I'm a swimmer. Okay? And I've made-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm a swimmer, too, but I choose to swim in the ocean.
MR. BUCK: I, I don't swim in the ocean. I'm afraid of sharks and-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: .. .(laughter). ..
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MR. BUCK: --animals with teeth. But-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... (laughter) . ..
MR. BUCK: --this has been, this has been a concern for a while. And... and like I said in the
Committee meetings, I don't have the real answer why we're having problems. We have
had a lot of consultants and people help us or come out and give us advice. We try to do
what they tell us to do.
It still don't work.
I know Coach Shiraishi has
been ... addressing concerns for the Kahului pool. We had set some fundings, cost to
replace the, the heater at Kahului pool. One of the problems that we're having was just
get. ..just so we can follow the procurement process, we couldn't get, basically, people to
bid on it. .. the project. They would supply the heater, which is fine, but we needed
somebody to install it. So that was one of the problems that we left. And I must
apologize, but the person who was working on that project has now left our Department
and has gone to work at Kamehameha School.
... I don't have, I don't have really an answer for your. I, you know, this has, it's been a
real frustrating project for me. We're trying to figure out why as best, I think what we're
trying to do is why, instead of spending a lot of money... what is really wrong, it may be,
it could be a simple fix. And in the Committee meeting ...the Gas Company says we
would like to do this, this, this, this, and this, and this. Well, I think if you talked to
Marvin lately, he's gone, he's pulling his hair out just like we were doing 'cause
he's ... experiencing the same problems.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Can you just share with us who is this person you're .. .(inaudible
due to interruption)-MR. BUCK: Oh, Marvin, from the Gas Company. He, he, he, the Gas Company was the one
was awarded the bid this year. Uh... their interest in this is to help us get the heaters up
and running-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is that Mr. Min, his last name,
interruption)--

Min of ... (inaudible due to

MR. BUCK: No-CHAIR KANE: Buenconsejo.
MR. BUCK: Buenconsejo, he's with the Gas Company. And their interest is, is that he cannot
sell gas if all our heaters are not working. So that's one of the reasons why... he's
they're interested in it, is to help us. They have the technical support, the technicians and
all the support. So they, they're really helping us with it.
... It's just that it's gotten to where everything is basically, at one time, I think all the
heaters were out except the new Wailuku pool. So everything just came to head. But
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we've been band-aiding, band-aiding for, you know, for the last couple years. We're
getting really frustrated and I guess it's just, like they said, they... the tidal wave has hit
and now it's time to do something about it. And I guess we gotta spend some money.
But we were trying to figure out, it might be just a, a simple thing. But it. . .it's not
simple. And like I said, we have, we've been calling people over from the mainland who
make these things-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. BUCK: --and they say, well, it should work this way, should work, then when they come
over, it doesn't work. So I don't know what the answer is.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, in may, please?
CHAIR KANE: Proceed, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just as a follow-up, Mr. Buck. .. are, are ... your counterparts in the
other Counties ... having similar challenges with pools and, and ... and their heater
programs or it's just by.. .chance . . .it's, it's kind of isolated in just our pools are, are
giving us problems?
That University of Hawaii doesn't have their heating
problems ... the big, big schools, whether it be private like Punahou, Kamehameha or,
you know, or the big public schools that have nice facilities like Kaiser... and whatnot,
Moanalua? Is, is this a Maui kind of phenomenon that we just dealing with or you know
of others that have similar problems with, with their-MR. BUCK: Well, I know-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --heating needs?
MR. BUCK: To answer your question, I, that's why I've kind of instructed staff that we should
maybe do some follow-up with the other pools. But I know lot of the City and County
does
pools in Honolulu... some of 'em do not have heaters. The Kawamoto pool on
not have a heater. Their new pool in Pahoa and in Kona has heaters. Urn ...
. . . again, I. .
I haven't heard any problems with their heaters. I know it was out
for awhile, but it was, I don't know what was wrong with it. Um.. .I haven't, either they
don't have the problems we're having or they don't wanna really advertise it. Because I
do know that some of the pools don't have heaters.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. BUCK: I do know that Sakamoto, at one time, I think Kahului at one time ...
. . . and Lahaina, when they were built, they did not have heaters. They, they
were ... thanks to people like me who like to swim in warm water, that convinced, I think,
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the Director at the time that maybe we should start putting heaters in the pools because
there was a lot of complaints from swimming community, especially during the winter
time, the swim meets, the water was getting quite cold. Maybe not as cold as the, the
pool in Hilo, because it's a covered pool, you know, gotta be covered, so they don't get a
lot of sunshine. But at that time we had, you know, requested that maybe we ... start
putting the heaters in. Now .. .I've worked with pools, the heater's been working 30
years. I don't know if it's just the type of heater or the type of fuel they're burning or
what's the problem, but. .. for us, it's been.. .I mean, even for our staff who's been
around swimming pools for a long time, it's, it's been real frustrating for them.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And I appreciate your... your .. .{laughter} . .. candid comments.
And again, for those of us that. .. grew up and experienced Kepaniwai and lao Valley,
you know, 40 years ago, you wanna talk cold water, let me tell you, that was cold water-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... {laughter} . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
Kepaniwai.

But it never stopped us from, from, you know, sWImmmg up

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Walking on the water?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... {laughter} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... {laughter} . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... {laughter} . ..
. . . Okay, we won't, we won't divulge all the, all the years we have with those kind
of... but, let me just ask, since it appears there is a, now, a shift in direction and we, it
appears--as I understand it from your handout, Mr. Buck--that the Department now is
moving into replacement and, and the program is to get new heaters that can take care of
our needs and operate ... to ... to the satisfaction of our departments and our users. Is
the direction now?
MR. BUCK: Yeah, that's the direction.
example ... that's, that's the direction, but for
example, what we're planning on doing, Sakamoto .. .it's, it's what they call an indoor
heater. .. which sits in the room. And we don't know if that's the problem, because the
way it's set up. What we're planning on doing is ... so we don't have to worry about all
this other stuff in regards to ventilation, all that, we're gonna purchase outdoor heaters.
And I think that's what we were planning on doing with the Up country pool so they can
take the elements a little bit better than the ones we have. The ones we have now are
classified as "indoor heaters".
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
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MR. BUCK: And maybe because of the salt air and the wind conditions and a few other things,
that maybe it affects the, the coils and the, and the burning units and everything else. But
that's the direction that we're going. We're hopefully, we're, that's the direction that we
can correct and we're not gonna have this problem farther down the road.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. And just a quick follow-up. You know, one of the new things
of technology is tankless water heating options. Is that something that makes sense for,
for the Department to consider as part of. .. the replacement program for the new, for the
new heater, heating program? Or are we looking at buying a huge tank to heat up to 120
degrees and-MR. BUCK: No-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --have it mixed with the-MR. BUCK: Just. .. basically, the heaters are tankless. You have a heating coil inside the water,
it's just like a, what do you call 'em, the, the ones without the ...
. . . anyway, they're tankless.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... (laughter) . ..
MR. BUCK: There's a term and I can't come across it. You use it for your houses and stuff.
But they're tankless. Basically, you got two sets of coils--you got the heating coils and
the, and they exchange the heat. .. you have the heat exchanger. So there's no tanks
involved.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. No, and again, I thank you for telling us that 'cause, you
know, I was wondering how would you maintain the water temperature as constant as
possible for, for optimal, you know, competitive uses and ... and ... some of our other
recreational requirements. So ... thank you, Chairman, I am happy relinquish the floor.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. And, Members ... and couple of things first
before I recognize Ms. Johnson. And, first, Mr. Buck, I would caution you since you said
"thanks to me, we, we have warm water". Please be aware that if you're taking credit for
that, then you may wanna...be cautious of accepting responsibility for where we're at
now. So-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: --I just say that-COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR KANE: --in a-- 33 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County ofMaui

January 31,2006

MR. BUCK: I appreciate it and-CHAIR KANE: --in a, in a respectful-MR. BUCK: --yeah, so if you're gonna-CHAIR KANE: --way, but-MR. BUCK: --put somebody, you know, I, I was kind of doing it as ajoke, sir.
CHAIR KANE: ... (inaudible) . ..
MR. BUCK: I'm sorry. I apologize.
CHAIR KANE: No, no problem.
MR. BUCK: But-CHAIR KANE: Just, just know what you said so you're aware of, we heard what you said.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... {laughter} . ..
CHAIR KANE: The other thing is that I, Members, I do recognize the time. Again, if you've
taken note of your agenda, we have some pretty heavy issues that we are gonna
discussion. And I would anticipate that we're gonna go beyond 4:30 this afternoon. And
so if there are any Members that have some time constraints, I'm gonna ask
Member Johnson if she'd like to ask questions now. And then, I'm gonna recognize a
recess. Or would you like to take a recess now and then come back and I'll open the
floor with Member Johnson-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
CHAIR KANE: --taking the floor?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It's fine to take a recess.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Why don't we go ahead and do that without objections, Members, we'll
take a recess. Time now is 2:55. We'll recess for 10 minutes, come back at 5 after 3.
And Members, if you can, please let our Staff know if you need to leave. That way we
can ...we, if worse comes to worse, we may have to defer an item or two, because, again,
I'd like to have full discussion on each ofthe items. And I don't wanna cut short because
we're in a rush to get to the next item. So with that, Members, we will recess until 3:05.
Committee stands in recess ... (gavel) . ..
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RECESS:

2:55 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:10 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: .. . {gavel} . .. Okay, Members, let's reconvene. It's 10 after 3. Thank you for
that break. Member Johnson, you have the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and I'm gonna make it very quick ... {laughter} . .. One
of the questions .. .I have ... and, and it would probably be to the Finance Director, would
be in regard to the suggestion that Councilmember Tavares made with regard to how we
would put this into, you know, Countywide. Is that something that you feel is able to be
accomplished and would make it easier for you?
... Or .. . {laughter} . .. you know, whoever wants to answer it.
MR. YOUNG: ... Yes, Ms. Johnson. I, yeah, I would, I would think that that would be more
flexible on the part of the Parks Department. And if your membership ... thinks that is
appropriate, I, I think it's, overall, a very good idea. It would allow a lot of
flexibility ... and might allow the Parks Department to ... you know, to address, more
immediately, some other issues that may have arised [sic] that we're not aware of. But, I,
I think it's a good idea.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Great. 'Cause my concern, too, was that, well, if any
of the amounts changed because of the bids and different. .. things fluctuate. I, I. . .I am
supportive of that. And my, my other question would be in regard to the bigger
picture--because that's kind of where I, I see this... this whole debate or dialog or
conversation going--is what is the bigger picture? And I would like to find out, perhaps
from you, Mr. Buck, or, or from Finance again--is there some way that in the Budget that
we will be presented with shortly, can we have some type of a evaluation or analysis
done to support your Department so that we can look at what might be a workable plan
for all of our pools? And with regard to the heaters, it, it might be ... do, do we need a
particular expertise for staffing to do in-house repair. .. utilizing, maybe, one type of
equipment for all of the pools; looking, maybe over on the Big Island, seeing they've
got a really good system, how could that work. So that's kind of the way I'm. . I'm
asking if that would be something that you would be open to so that we can address the
issues that have been brought up today... and, and prevent future problems?
NOTE:

Silence.

MR. BUCK: ... I think when we, to answer your question ... Councilmember Johnson ...
. . . what we try to do is try to prevent future problems. We're starting to, as far as our
Department in certain areas, we're trying to start standardizing certain things so that
if... one goes out, we can maybe interchange parts.
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... As far as the technical support ...that's one of the problems being on Maui ...
. . . is to get the, the proper technical support. The support that we've been getting with
the Gas Company...the one guy that comes, coming over from Honolulu at the expense
of the Gas Company. One of things that we're looking at, that we know there's a
maintenance issue involved to maintain it, so in .. .I think in the future, we're currently
working with the supplier. .. and other people, is that, to determine what kind of
maintenance program that needs to be done and either put that. .. maintenance program
out to ... RFP or whatever, or make it part of the, of the ... contract to supply the, the
energy. I mean, it's, it's all right to sell gas. But if you're not gonna help fix it, then
you're not gonna sell gas down the road, and that's kind of where we are ...kind of where
we're at now. I mean, in the past, we did have some support. But actually, the, he was
bringing outside people. So they do have some, the Gas Company does have some
technical people. Hopefully, they can help us address some of the problem. I will tell
you that even their technicians are, right now, on a couple issues, are stumped. And
there's, and they're working with the manufacturers. But in the future, what we're
planning on doing is be sure that we have a maintenance agreement of some sort--either
separate maintenance agreement that's for a service company or be part of the
specifications in the, in the supplying of the product.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much. And, and I know that you've
had challenges in this area. And I thank you for bringing this forward. And .. .I will be
supporting whatever resolution ... (laughter) . .. results in the water temperature being
raised to a level where people can actually use the pools because we've spent all this
money on these beautiful pools and if the kids can't do their practices and if the seniors
can't use 'em, then doesn't do us much good to have these facilities .. .if you can't use
them. So I'll be supportive of whatever .. .(laughter) . .. solutions you can offer. And I
do like the suggestion made by Councilmember Tavares that we put this in Countywide.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Member Johnson. Member Molina and Member Pontanilla, I'll
recognize you. And the Chair,
Chair's intention--and
do this for the sake oftime,
and I know, more specifically both of you gentlemen...have time constraints, and I
appreciate you notifYing Staff. The Chair's intent is going to defer on this item, but with
the recommendation of them considering using part of the funds that have not yet been
encumbered from the Countywide fund. And, and I wanted to give that information to
you to let you know that the Chair's intent is to bring back this item. And before we do
that, the Chair intends to, with Staff, meet with the Budget Director, the Parks Director,
and the Finance Director to have a, a more in-depth discussion as far as bringing it back,
forward to ...to understand the direction that the Administration wants to go. So, forgive
me, Mr. Molina, Mr. Pontanilla, but I wanna recognize you, but I wanted to let you know
that's the Chair's intent at this point, once we completed questions and answers.
Mr. Molina, followed by Mr. Pontanilla.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman, for the heads up on that. I just had one
question for clarity sake. Regarding the swimming pools, the, of the six swimming pools
that we've ... been shown here and the types of repairs needed, the Kihei swimming pool,
I, I would guess is the youngest or the newest of the six swimming pools. And you have
mentioned here the installation of a new scoreboard. Is that, do we have an existing
scoreboard or is this something that's totally out of the blue that we're gonna put in
there? And if I could just have a few little details on it--cost and ... other. .. other-MR. BUCK: As you-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --comments .. . (inaudible) . ..
MR. BUCK: Yes, Councilmember Molina. We have an existing scoreboard there. But
it's .. .it's a, it's a, kind of a mechanical scoreboard. And what we're noticing with this
type of scoreboard is that it has a tendency to start sticking. And so we're starting getting
a lot of these big swim meets at the Kihei pool. And one of the things that. ..we have a
nice facility, but one of the, some of the comments that the coaches tell us is that the
times are wrong on the board. Well, it's not the timing system, it's just that the digits,
sometimes, don't flip right.
And some of our other scoreboards, it. . .1ike at
the ... Sakamoto pool and Lahaina pool, couple of the panels need to be replaced. I was
over at the grand opening of the Central Oahu ... the pool at the ...Veterans Memorial
pool, the new pool in Central Oahu. And they have a .. .it's a .. .I think it's LED or it's a
dot matrix, which is the, the new technology they're using. It does not have ... the, the
flippers and, and things like that. So our intention, because we have a, a.. .international
meet. .. Japan ... senior swimmers coming over in May, and we're having the Pan-Pacs
again in January... of 2007, I think it's the second week--that we would like, if possible,
to replace that board with this new one. It's a lot cheaper than the existing one. I think
the new one is about 16,000 or something. And the existing one, the one we have now,
when we put it up, it was like 30,000 just for the panel ... (end a/tape, start 2B) . .. and it
would ... save us a lot of manpower hours .. .instead of trying to fix the, the bearings and
all this stuff that needs to be done to keep it working good for the swim meet. .. and it just
look a little bit better for. . .it's, it's a wish list item. You know, I mean,
. .if by the
time we finish all the heaters, there's no more money leftover to, you know, supply
scoreboard, then that would be one of the items axed out of it. But that's, one of our
intention was with the new scoreboard...take the, the good ones and then put 'em in the
other existing boards. Like, Sakamoto is the oldest and it's starting to have a lot of
sticking problems. And, and the Lahaina one has a couple panels with burnouts. Instead
of buying a whole new panel. .. at a higher cost, that we figure we ... should replace the
whole scoreboard at Kihei pool.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, so in a nutshell, I guess a long-term, more efficient
state-of-the-art upgrade in terms of the scoreboard for the pool. Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla?
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. First of all, thank you very much,
John, for mentioning that, you know, ongoing, going forward, that whenever we do a
contract that we also include a maintenance contract to see that our equipment is properly
maintained. The question that I have is that. . .it can be "yes" or "no". Have ... whenever
we call the vendor in regards to the type of repair that needs to be done or the type of
problems that have ... you know, I, I guess most of the times that, when you do call,
basically conversation. Have you ever thought about bringing in an expert from the
vendor to Maui to look at. .. the heater? When you look at cost at Upcountry, as well as
Sakamoto, you know, we looking at 125 and 65 thousand dollars. I don't know ifboth of
'em have the same heater. If not, you know, you take a look at Up country
one ... bringing in the expert from the mainland to take a look. As you said, it might be a
little thing that needs to be done.
MR. BUCK: Councilman Pontanilla, I'm glad to answer that question. And, yes, we have. Like
I said in, during the Committee meetings, we've even stumped the guys who built the
heaters why they're not working. I mean, we flew a couple guys over at our, our... at our
expense to tell us what should be done. They said do this, do this, this. We do it, we call
'em up, still not working. The, our, our guys are sitting there working off the heaters the
same time we talking to the guy who designed the heater--on the phone, you know, long
distance to the mainland, and even Honolulu. So, yeah, we have done that. And... and I
can't, I don't have the answer. And that's why it's, for me personally, it's been real
frustrating for me because I know they're supposed to work. But why they're not, and
I'm not an engineer, and I rely on engineers to do that. And when we stump the, the
designs and the, and the sales people and the ...the peop1e--we've even had local
consultants come out there and give recommendations.
We've done all their
recommendations, and we're still having problems. And with the Gas Company, they're
going back from square one. And they're doing, basically, a lot of the same stuff that
we've done before. So I, I cannot answer your question, but, yes, we have had the, the
experts go in.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. And
more question. I just have this one more--

wait for the next meeting to ask

CHAIR KANE: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --in regards to the expenditure for Countywide Park
Improvements. On, on, on the Lahaina Civic Center parking lot, under remarks to be
transferred to the LCC CIP ... do you have a CIP there now?
MR. BUCK: Yeah, and we just noticed that. .. reviewing the budget that there is some CIP funds
for ... the continuing improvements of the Lahaina Civic Center. And ...why it was taken
out of Countywide? We don't know because there are other projects that we have
pending that we wanna use that 300,000 for, total for.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So that goes back-- 38 -
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MR. BUCK: Yeah, there's-COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --under Countywide?
MR. BUCK: Yeah. We just caught it today.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, missed a couple things. The ... Lahaina Civic Center
parking lot was part of the Park Assessment expenditure. As I recall, we had quite a
discussion about what qualified for Park Assessment. And I believe this is under the
budget in...under the Park Assessment Fund. So this probably needs to be transferred to
that account number or something like that.
MR. BUCK: Yeah, that's what we're planning on doing. The other, the other. . .issue that we're
trying to work with the State right now is if we, we have a right of entry for four years for
that property that we did that work on. We're trying to work with the State right now so
we can build a permanent-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
MR. BUCK: --it, it's just gravel. We brought in-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
MR. BUCK: --{inaudible}... and all that. Our plan is to build a permanent parking lot
there ... to accommodate all the events that go on over there. But we would like to,
eventually get a ... that property Executive Ordered, and I think that's being worked on
right now.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The other question I had was ...this Council. . .last Budget
term, put in the monies for the Countywide. And I think it was not with the Mayor's
original Budget that carne down to us, but in a supplemental. .. request he had, request
supplement to his budget. Talked about 200,000 and we upped it to 300,000. And the
other thing we put in, I believe if my memory serves me correctly, was a pool pump
mechanic ...helper. And is, has that position been filled?
NOTE:

Silence.
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MR. BUCK: ... No, it has not. It's in the, it's in process of being... reviewed ...by DPS. It's
in DPS right now, they're reviewing it and we, hopefully, we can bring the person on as-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. BUCK: --ASAP.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Great. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Just for clarification, the 89,000 for the Lahaina Civic Center parking lot. . .in
the remarks, the transfer. . .is that saying that now you would free up more money in that
account for Countywide ... all 89,000 dollars?
MR. BUCK: That's correct.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, the Chair's recommendation, at this point, is for deferral of
this item. Hearing the discussion and asking Mr. Buck if he agrees with the testimony
that Mister. .. Steve Goldstein gave--and, and I will read from the testimony: the Mayor,
Keith Regan, and John Buck agreed that this is a top priority regarding the standing,
long-standing problems in the Upcountry pool heating system, as well as the other pools.
Mr. Buck, is ... would you concur with that statement that was testified by Mr. Goldstein
today?
MR. BUCK: ... It's one of our top priorities.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MR. BUCK: It's, it's not the, it's one of our type. We have ... some other priorities, but,
yeah... yeah, it is a top priority. But it's one of 'em.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Members, the Chair's recommendation is to ask for your
consideration to defer this item. And we intend to bring it back once myself, along
our Staff, make arrangements to meet with our Budget Director, Finance Director, as well
as our Park Director and/or Deputy Director to have further discussion
this area
regarding the direction that they're taking as a coordinated effort regarding the
DMVL. .. trailers and the space that's being taken up--as Member Anderson has pointed
out some of the impacts of that. And then bring this back. In the meantime, it is apparent
that they have discretionary funds to use to get the ball rolling, as Member Tavares has
pointed out in the Countywide funds. And at this point, it looks like they're gonua have
close to 185,000 dollars to utilize to at least get the ball roll, and would allow some time
for them to ... to take some steps towards this resolving this long-standing problem. And
we will bring it back so that we can, if it's necessary, after discussions, to make
additional adjustments for a budget amendment. So, Members, that's the Chair's
recommendation at this time. Any comments or questions? Ms. Johnson?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: My question would be that in terms of Park Assessment, do
you know off-hand, Mr. Buck. .. because the biggest expense that we're looking at and
the most urgent. . .I guess would be the Up country pool, if we're gonna.. .let's say,
replace money that would have been in Park Assessment, is that, do you know where that
Park Assessment would have come from? Like, with the 89,000 dollars, that came out of
West Maui. Is that correct?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So that would go back to West Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But. .. the other needs are Countywide .
. . . So, I, I guess, Mr. Chair, I'm trying to understand that. I mean-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... {inaudible} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --we have these different representations from district,
different districts. So if you're looking at the overall money and where you're gonna get
the money from, even if they put back the 89,000 dollars, or I guess take it out of Park
Assessment, rather ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... I, I. . .I'm just not clear... you know, is, is that really
gonna help the rest of the Countywide funds if you take it out of West Maui Park
Assessment. And what's gonna not get done West Maui .. . {laughter} . ..
MR. BUCK: Uh... Councilmember. .. Johnson, I think when we ... did the project, it was one of
those you gotta do like right now, 'cause the reason why it was delay, we was just trying
to get. .. title, entitlement or some type, getting permission to use the property. Because it
was kind of a rush job, we, we had... a very limited time ... table. And we were gonna do
a lot of the work in-house to reduce the cost in half. I mean, if we were use an outside
contractor, it would probably cost us double. And I think it, the intention was to do that
project with the, the Lahaina Civic Center monies, which is .. .1 believe is Park
Assessment, but it was charged out to Countywide. And what we're gonna do is reverse
those charges so it comes out of the West Maui ... to beefup the Countywide back up.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And, and my only concern about that, Mr. Buck, is
that because that is a facility that's used for all kinds of events and everything for
everybody in the County, that if you take the 89,000 dollars specifically out of West
Maui parks ... because it's Park Assessment, what I'm wondering is what level does that
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leave West Mark Park Assessment at and . .. (laughter) . .. what doesn't get done. And,
and that's, you know, I mean, it's ...
MR. BUCK: I, I don't think there would be an impact on the overall West District because that,
that monies that. .. for the west, the Lahaina Civic Center, it, it did call for some parking
lot improvements. So, you know, that 89,000, which would beef up the ... Countywide,
would go back into what was intended for the Lahaina Civic Center. The ... Countywide
is, is, is a, a reign, a long reign of improvements. It's your 5, your 10, your 15 thousand
dollar projects. If not, then it would be all listed as separate items in the Budget
Ordinance. And I think they went Countywide because there were so many of these
small projects had to be done, they carne up with the Countywide. So there was little bit
more flexibility for the Department, especially if a, vandals carne over and, you know,
destroyed 20,000 dollars worth of fencing or, or whatever--that, that we'd have that
flexibility to repair it instead of trying to have to do these changes through ordinance.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Well, I'll, I'll visit with you more about this specific
issue privately, then. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Okay, Members, you have the Chair's recommendation. Only, and
just a brief. .. comment on Mr. Buck, you start, you talked about Countywide ... parks
being used for projects of 5, 10, 15 thousand. And yet, you folks have listed to justify the
use of the 300,000 ... Kaunakakai Gym painting, 70,000; Kenolio Community Center,
70,000. So I mean, I, I don't know ...what you said and what you're listing here is
consistent. Anyway, that's just a, a note. We're gonna go ahead and defer this item.
Members, without objections, deferral?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: RC and DAM)
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion
you, Mr. Buck.

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very
. . . Members,
Number 65.

ITEM NO. 65:

you.

I can direct your attention, please, to Budget and ..

AMENDING FY 2006 BUDGET (WASTEWATER RECLAMATION
FACILITIES PROGRAM- WASTEWATER FUND) (C.c. No. 06-6)

CHAIR KANE: Mr. Taguchi is passing out some documentation...relevant to this particular
item. This is the Wastewater. .. amending the FY 2006 Budget regarding the Wastewater
Reclamation Facilities Program, the Wastewater Fund. Members, for your information,
the committee in receipt of County Communication Number 06-6 ... from the Budget
Director, transmitting the following. First, a proposed bill for an ordinance amending the
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Fiscal Year 2006 Budget for the County of Maui as it pertains to estimated revenues, the
Department of Public Works and Environmental Management, Total Operating
Appropriations and Total Appropriations... Operating and Capital Improvement Projects.
Members, the purpose of this proposed bill is to increase the Carryover/Savings from the
Wastewater Fund and the appropriation for the Wastewater Reclamation Facilities
Program, Wastewater Fund, by 625,000 dollars. Members, you'll note that we have just
received a communication dated January 2ih on your desk, that that number of 625,000
has been increased to 825,000 dollars. And I believe there is an attachment, if I'm not
mistaken, of the certification of the additional 200,000 dollars, for a total of
825,000--which you'll note on the last page of that first attachment to the ... J anuary 2ih
memo. Members, the second item is the certification of the 625,000. And for
clarification, I'll have Mr. Ginoza provide us with that 825,000 certificate ... certification
is to replace the 625,000, not in addition to the 625. Is that correct, Mr. Ginoza?
MR. GINOZA: That is correct.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Mr. Ginoza, you have the floor. We have two items before us, Members,
and the discussion will be opened with Mr. Ginoza. Go ahead.
MR. GINOZA: Okay, the increase in fuel prices over the past two years have increased
electrical costs in the operating budget for Wastewater. The request is to appropriate,
from Carryover/Savings in the Wastewater Reclamation...Reclamation Facilities
Programs, additional funds of 825,000, to meet the ...unforeseen increase in
electrical. .. electrical costs in the operation of the west. .. wastewater facilities.
Mr. Chairman, representatives of the Department of Public Works Wastewater Fund [sic}
are available to provide additional information or to answer any questions you or the
Committee may have.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. Members, we have with us this afternoon, our
Director of Public Works and Environmental Management, Mr. Milton Arakawa. And
with him we have, Mr. Dave Taylor, I believe, is the Division Chief for Wastewater.
Thank you very much. Opening remarks by you, Mr. Arakawa?
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. As you've noted, we have a request before the
Committee ... amended request before the Committee for 825,000 dollars for additional
electricity costs which are needed for Fiscal Year '06. We would like to note that most of
the cost increase is due to the energy cost adjustment component of the electric bill,
which varies from month to month. The increase from 625 to 825,000 was due to the fact
that we received additional data for the months ...recent months of November and
December. Which...really had a high energy cost adjustment component. Analysis of
the recent billings have shown that the energy cost adjustment have increased from
35 percent of the electric bill to 52 percent of the electric bill. However, the usage of
electricity...has gone up more modestly. It's a modest increase of 4 percent. That
concludes my comments. And if you have any questions, I'll be happy to try to answer
them.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any additional comments from Mr. Taylor at this time? No?
Okay, thank you. Members, it's open for questions. Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Because November and December. . .information resulted in
this extra 200,000 .. .(laughter) . .. request. .. what would you attribute that particular
increase to? Is it fuel adjustment cost or is it because it's seasonal. .. with adjustment for
visitors ... you know, where the usage would be increased? Could you give us any idea
or speculate why that went up?
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Ms. Johnson.
. . . Basically, the energy cost adjustment on the Maui Electric bill is essentially an
adjustment for their actual cost in buying fuel. So ... for example, in November 2005, it
was 0.1296 dollars, and then in December it went up to 0.1384. So ... as comparison, in
October of2004, it was 0.0652. So it's basically doubled.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. TAYLOR: And that really represents the cost of fuel going up and Maui Electric's cost for
purchasing fuel. And this is, except for the 4 percent increase in usage ... the entire
increase in electric bill is due to this ... fuel surcharge increase, essentially.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, so the ... so the reason for the request is not. . .I guess
it wouldn't be triggered by utilization.
It's triggered by the fuel cost
adjustment. ..because it's a percentage, then?
MR. TAYLOR: That's correct--the utilization is just a few percent higher than we anticipated.
But obviously, the costs are, are higher than that because of this surcharge.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Mr. Hokama... followed by Mr.

H"""'UUu..

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman ... first question--Mr. Ginoza ...
. . . are there any General Funds transfer into this special fund program?
MR. GINOZA: Not into the Wastewater.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Zero?
MR. GINOZA: Yes.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So it's interesting that this budget is based on revenue of
383,000, rounded out. .. and today you can tell us you have all this surplus,
carryover/savings of another 825,000 dollars ...but now this fund is gonna go from 383,
approximately, to 1.21 million dollars.
NOTE:

Silence.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: '" So ... what have we been doing or not doing that you can account
for such a big carryover, that you can certify now, in halfway through the third quarter all
this savings ... for this consideration?
MR. GINOZA: ... Can I defer this to Dave Taylor?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Arakawa... prepared to respond? Mr. Taylor.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Taylor.
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you. Mr. Hokama... we ...we have a, an additional 1.21 million dollars
in revenue above what was estimated, as well as our debt service for SRF Loans, which
kicks in a year after the notice to proceed on construction projects. That was actually
pushed back a little bit as we started repaying that debt service. So those are the two big
factors that have resulted in this carryover/savings.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Your additional revenue from, I guess, user base, what, what is that
attributed to? What, what came on-line that provided this additional revenue?
MR. TAYLOR: Revenues are, are ... based on water usage, as well as a base rate and, and water
usage, as well as number of .. .
. . . service billings.
So exactly which of those it was, I don't have that
information--whether we had a lot more services or people were using more water, and
therefore paying higher bills.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
occurrence?

So you telling us this afternoon that this is not a ... unordinary

MR. TAYLOR:
According to our Accountant, the revenues are usually anticipated
conservatively in case people use less water and the revenues are lower. And in this
case ...the '06, the Fiscal Year '06 revenues were estimated conservatively, and the
revenues are, as I mentioned, about 1.2 million dollars higher than those estimates.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So ... so how is this gonna impact the '07 ... fee ... fee structure for
your users?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: There is no carry. You're asking us to put it in, in '06. So there's no
carryover for '07. Right?
MR. TAYLOR: According to the numbers that. . .1, I got from our Accountant today--and these
aren't up-to-date as of today, but there's about. .. 1.8 million dollars, roughly, in the
unappropriated fund balance. And we're requesting 825,000 of that. So there should be
on the order of about a million dollars in, in carryover at this point.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... Okay. So that means we will see no request for General Fund
transfers to this Fund. You are ... you, you are .. .informing us that there will be no
change in the sewer fee structure--because it's adequate.. .in the upcoming budget.
... And that in, the balance of the, whatever is savings in the Solid ... Wastewater Fund is
enough to take care of this Division's debt service and needs in the upcoming budget year
also, then. That's what I'm hearing you guys tell me this afternoon.
MR. ARAKA WA: Councilmember Hokama.. just want to clarify. As far as the supplement
request is concerned, there are no ... fee ... proposed fee increases.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I, I'm carrying it through because we're gonna go budget real
soon.
MR. ARAKAWA: Right. But for Fiscal Year '07, there likely will be ... some proposed rate
mcreases.
NOTE:

Silence.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... Then, I think we need to
the people know ...that this surplus
is, was part of how we were gonna, how, offset big increases in
considerations .
. . . Which is what the Council has tried to do--whereby, I think
you had requested a multi-year phasing in because--

past, Chairman,

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: True.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --the actual proposal was such a large increase, we felt it was
not. .. fair to the resident user to come up in the next year for that big percentage increase.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So we asked for a multiple year phase in to reduce that negative ... or
cash flow consideration.
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CHAIR KANE: That's correct.
multi-year increase.

They requested 17 percent.

And we cut that back to a

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Mr. Ginoza, what, maybe you can help me. Why is it only this
Division. 1. . .1 mean, don't other Departments and Divisions have same utility concerns?
So why isn't Water Department coming before us? They pump . .. a lot of, for the wells.
So they have a big utility bill. I'm sure Parks.
MR. GINOZA: I, I believe the Water Department is, is ... suffering the same fate. They're,
they're looking at their, at their appropriations right now because their electrical bills is in
the millions in increases.
NOTE:

Silence.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... Have you stopped con, taking into consideration request for use
of. .. so-called savings?
MR. GINOZA: I beg your pardon?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
savings?

Have you already stopped taking additional requests for use of

MR. GINOZA: Stopped?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Whereby, the Mayor--yes. I mean, eventually, you gotta make a
point for you to develop and present to us the '07 Budget.
MR. GINOZA: Yes.
NOTE:

Silence.

HOKAMA: ... So what is your, oh, I
know you can
us, 'cause
sure the Mayor might wanna say that in his budget delivery speech, but. .. what are you
basing the '07 Carryover number at? 15 million? 20 million dollars? 10 million dollars?
MR. GINOZA: Well, for this particular... request, we're looking at, you know, just the
Wastewater... carryover budget, I mean, carryover/savings from the '05 actuals, as
compared to-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You, you must, you must not be communicating well-MR. GINOZA: Okay.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... Because I'm looking at this, and I'm thinking how will it impact
the '07 upcoming Budget. .. specifically for this Department and in this
specific ... self-sufficient fund. So my, my question to you was, you know, you are
continue bringing to us certification of additional revenue to spend this year. .. and I'm
wondering...what you gonna show us for your revenue, carryover for the next budget
since you eroding something that we've all worked hard to build up.
MR. GINOZA: ... Well, I don't, I don't look at it so much as "eroding", but looking at the
required expenditures that's necessary to run the facility and what the sources of funds
are coming from, and looking to carryover/savings from the individual funds or the
General Fund. So at this point, we're looking at trying to resolve the issue of operations.
And, yes, we haven't really done a complete analysis of the carryover/savings as it
impacts the 2007 Budget yet, but I think this is important in the sense of trying to
address, you know, the fund shortages that's occurring in the '06 Fiscal Year.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So tell us what you have recommended to the Division through its
Department Head on how to, maybe, adjust what they currently have so that maybe this
request, should it be only half the amount? Are they doing anything internally... to
create ... ability to transfer within their authority, funds to take care their needs?
MR. GINOZA: Uh, maybe I'm not-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You've already tried everything internally, administratively, that is
the, still the end result--I need 825,000 dollars more ... to pay our utility bill because we,
there's no other monies available within our Division and our Department for, for this.
Or is this the easy out--Iet's ask Council for the money, we get cash, so you know, then I
don't have to make hard administrative decisions?
NOTE:

Silence.

MR. GINOZA: ... Uh-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Where are we?
MR. GINOZA: We, we haven't ...
. . . The Budget Office hasn't looked at, you know, this possible savings from the
different elements of Wastewater, as of yet.
. . . But we understand that the funds are ... are ... are accounted for with, with, with
respect to the operations.
NOTE:

Silence.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... So--
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MR. GINOZA: Maybe I can defer to Dave Taylor to-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Taylor?
MR. TAYLOR: Mr. Chair, Mr. Hokama, we, we, we in the Division have looked at our, our
funds. And in anticipation of, if this supplemental budget request was not approved, we
would have to get these monies from some other operational funds which are
currently... basically earmarked for equipment replacement and other operational
maintenance issues that are also ... very necessary. And we feel that putting off some of
those anticipated expenditures would really hurt the reliability of the system. So we're
here, really, after looking, we've already looked at those numbers and feel that it would
not be ...
. . . prudent of us to use some of those other funds ... for this cost, due to the, the
downgrading of the overall reliability of the system operation.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So can we take it this afternoon that those ... (end of tape, start
3A) . .. services, those contracts that maintain the reliability of the system ...has already
encumbered those funds? Those decisions have been already made? Or are, it, it will be
made ... for the ... use ... use of those monies ... balances?
MR. TAYLOR: Yes, Mr. Hokama. We, we, because we know that we're going to have to pay
this electric bill, we're-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, that's not my question.
MR. TAYLOR: Okay, we've been holding off. .. some of these other expenditures because the
electric bill is the, going to be the priority. And these maintenance upgrades are,
this
are ... basically the number two priority right after that. So, for example,
supplemental budget request is not approved, we'll essentially have no choice but to put
off those other maintenance upgrades and use the money to pay the electric bill.
that's again something we, we feel is, is not prudent.
NOTE:

Silence.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... I know what it's, I heard, I'm hearing what you're saying and
yet. .. my, my difficulty is if it is to maintain the reliability of the system, then for me, the
hard decision has, was, should have already made--and that is get those money
encumbered to take care and maintain that reliability. You telling us you want us to
make your hard decision ... for you folks, instead of you guys making the decision that
you get paid for .
. . . That's what you telling us this afternoon.
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MR. TAYLOR: The ... the primary-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The out is we got money... so let's use that out and we don't have to
make, then, the choice between what we get paid as Administrators between this and this.
We'll make this administrative decision a legislative budgetary decision instead. That's
how it's coming to me.
MR. TAYLOR: I apologize if that's, if that's how I'm coming across. Urn ...the electricity.. .if
we shut the electricity off to our facilities, we will definitely be spilling wastewater
everywhere.
And our processes will stop.
And we will definitely have
operational. .. problems. So ...having electricity becomes the primary reliability issue.
Once we have that, now we start looking at the equipment. And that really becomes
secondary. So having electricity for the facilities .. .if we don't have that, we will
certainly have to, the, the facilities will shut off and, and the reliability just goes to zero
immediately. That's why this is the primary ...
. . . the primary issue we need to take care of first, and then after that, we, we go back and
start looking at our secondary priorities.
NOTE:

Silence.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... Again ... {sigh} . .. Chairman...my point is, I understand that
scenario that Mr. Taylor shared. What I had hoped to have heard was we've already
made a decision that those bills that need to be maintained and paid because, particular
power... electricity...we've made a decision, no way will we jeopardize that portion of
what we have to perform as a Division. And we will make all the commitments up front.
Current financial ... {inaudible} . .. to take care of that reliability issue. Okay? Then
comes the other areas--equipment. .. some, maybe, like frequency of maintenance or
whatever it be ... then that so-called discretionary is what they should be telling us this is
what we're willing to prioritize, and may sacrifice should we not get the additional
· . . {inaudible} . .. But they haven't made that decision to take care the electricity need.
They're waiting for us to make the decision.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. , Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, shall we be the administrator of the Department's programs? If
that's what they want, then let's make the Charter change and go back to the Board of
Supervisors. 'Cause that's how it was.
· .. If they want us to make that hard decision.
· .. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Your point is well taken by the Chair. Mr. Molina?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman. Question for either
Mr. Arakawa or Mr. Taylor. You know, energy cost increases are inevitable. This is a
good chunk of change here that we're looking at--825,000 dollars. If you have this
information today, I'd like to know basically how much money was requested by the
Department to offset prior. .. energy cost increases. If you don't have that answer today,
we can get it later on down the road. My question's basically centered around--is the
Department looking at other conservation measures to reduce or minimize electrical cost
increases without jeopardizing services? For example, has the Department looked at,
maybe, investing in energy-efficient equipment, for example? Can you comment?
MR. TAYLOR: ... Thank you, Mr. Molina. As a matter of fact, if, if .. on the spreadsheet that
was handled, it's titled: Wastewater Reclamation Division, Electrical Costs. If you look
on the ... under kilowatt hours, where it says Kahului WWRF, and you track the kilowatt
hour usage from Fiscal Year '03, '04, 'OS, you'll see it dropping from over 7 million
kilowatt hours down to only 5.6 kilowatt hours. That was due to ... system changes for
electrical efficiency. During the last treatment plant upgrade, we took a really hard look
at electrical usage. We ... designed and implemented systems which, which really
dropped the power at that particular facility in the neighborhood of 30 percent. So every
time we do a, a maintenance or operational upgrade, electrical efficiency is at the top of
our list about. .. our, one of our largest concerns.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: '" Okay.
. . . I'm just looking at. .. for example, Lahaina and Kihei. For example, the
highest. .. wastewater treatment facility kilowatt hours has increased there. I know
there's been a significant drop with, in Kahului. And Lahaina, as well as Kihei, has
increased. Can you explain that?
MR. TAYLOR: I don't have breakdowns of all the numbers.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: That's all right.
MR. TAYLOR: And these, although these say "wastewater reclamation facility", these are totals
of the facilities, plus all the pumping stations, plus the reuse water systems. So there's
a particularly dry year where the reuse users are using more water, that will, that will
mean more pumping of reuse water, for example. So I don't have a breakdown of exactly
where these ...where these, exactly where these costs, which facilities they are-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Db-huh.
MR. TAYLOR: --because they're a totalized cost.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Okay.
Could I request that information from Staff,
Mr. Chairman ... (inaudible). .. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: No problem, Mr. Molina.
questions. Ms., Ms. Anderson, please.

Any further questions?

Chair has just a few

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I just had a quick question. I'm pretty
dumbfounded here.
. . . Mr. Arakawa, you said that basically the ... fuel costs ... for electricity has in, has
doubled. And so aside from the 4 percent increase due to new users, we're looking at a
96 percent increase . . .in, in fuel costs to the elect, to the electrical bill?
MR. ARAKAWA: ... I, I believe what I mentioned was that as part of the electric bill, there's
an energy cost adjustment component of the bill. And that just reflects Maui Electric's
cost to obtain-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Fuel.
MR. ARAKAWA: --fuel oil.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. ARAKAWA: So, that is the unpredictable portion of the bill. And ...when we've looked at
the recent billings for November and December, the energy cost adjustment increased
from 35 percent of electric bill up to 52 percent. .. of electric bill. So that's the main
reason for the increase in the ... supplemental request from 625 up to 825,000.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: '" So you wouldn't say, then, that it has doubled in cost?
... I'm trying to get an idea here. I mean ...
MR. TAYLOR: ... Ms. Anderson, if, you refer to that, that same graph that's titled, or that
spreadsheet that's titled: Wastewater Reclamation Division, Electrical Costs... right
above where it says "Energy Cost Adjustment", there's a number that says "Cost Per
Kilowatt Hours". There's a row titled "Cost
Kilowatt Hours". That's the average,
averaging all these number of the total cost per kilowatt hours we've paid per year. And
you can see in FY '03, it was 17 cents; FY '04, it was 16 cents;
'05, it was 20 cents;
and year-to-date FY '06, it's 22 cents. So that is averaging all the numbers, the bottom
line cost per unit of electricity. So you can see that's a 10 percent increase over FY '05,
and a much higher increase over FY '04 and '03. And that's really the best number to
look at to get a sense of-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... (sigh) . ..
MR. TAYLOR: --cost increase per, per kilowatt hour.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
· .. (laughter) . ..

Thank you.

That's very reassunng,

I think

· .. Because, you know, if we're gonna be passing these costs on to the consumer... and
we haven't even looked at the increased cost for water. ..parks, whatever ...
· .. that is reassuring. That's not what I thought. .. was said earlier. But. . .I appreciate
breaking it down this way. It's easier to understand. It's still pretty shocking. I, I don't
think we're looking at the end of it either ... (sigh) . .. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: .. . (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Members, the Chair has just a few questions be, if.. .I may. On that same chart
that was handed out, the Wastewater Reclamation Division, Electrical Costs. To
Mr. Taylor or Mr. Arakawa--and I'll note to the Members, on the top of the page where it
just has "Cost", and if you go across for Fiscal Year 'OS, the budgeted amount was 3.45
million dollars. And then if you slide to the left several numbers or a couple of numbers,
the actual expended Fiscal Year '04 amount was 4 million, 20 thousand. That's about a
560,000 dollar over budget for Fiscal Year '05. So even with that 15 percent increase
that they asked for, they were still. .. not enough in their rec, in their projection. And here
we are today. So obviously Fiscal Year '07, up and coming, we're gonna hope that
Administration can come forward with a more accurate projection of their budget for this
area. But the question I wanted to ask. . .is that this body's been made aware ...back in
the discussions, if Members recall, regarding the discussions we had with the consultants
for the rate increase. You folks remember that discussion?
... It has come to the Chair's attention and I would like you folks to have that brought to
your attention--is that there was a recommendation by the consultant. .. that there be a
carryover in case of revenue shortfalls. Mr. Taylor or Mr. Arakawa, are you folks ready
to ... comment on that recommendation that was given to you folks ... with respects to
that? It, it was recommended in the neighborhood of a million dollars. Can you
that at this point in time?
MR. ARAKA WA: Mr. Chair, I'm... not familiar right offhand with the, the findings of that
study. I. . .if you like, I can report back to the Committee on, you know, whatever
comment you had regarding that particular study or the, the recommendations from that
study.
CHAIR KANE: ... Okay. Are you speaking for both of you ... as the Director, I'm taking your
word that that's ... for you and Mr. Taylor.
MR. ARAKAWA: That's correct. Yes.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay.
· .. Well, we'll get some follow-up with that based on the, the outcome of this request.
But. .. we're aware that there was a recommendation by the consultant. And .. .in this
case, that cushion is coming in handy for this request, apparently.
· .. And it also brings, I think, light to ...
· . . the budgeting for, for these requests. Members, any further questions for
the ...Director or the Budget Director? Yes, Mr. Ginoza, any additional comments?
Please.
MR. GINOZA: I make this comment with respect to ... Council. .. Hokama's comment re, with
respect to the '07 rate increases. We haven't finished the Budget yet. So .. .I, I know
Mr. Hokama mentioned that he's assuming there's no rate increases. And there were no
comments made to him. But I'd like to comment that, you know ... (laughter) . .. I, I
cannot assure that there's no rate increase 'cause we haven't finished the budget. So I, I
didn't want to leave that, that. .. comment, you know, left unattended with respect to no
increases for the '07 Budget. And ... at this point, I, I do not know yet.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chair?
CHAIR KANE: And, and Mr. Pontanilla, I'll recognize just a moment. And I think that will tie
in nicely with understanding what the consultant's recommendation is. Because based on
the recommendation, if you folks followed that recommendation of padding it by an "X"
number of dollars, that's gonna, obviously, impact the rate that you folks are gonna be
proposing for Fiscal Year '07. So we need to know that information... 'cause it's, it'll
help us with making future determinations as well, understanding that. And before I
recognize you, Mr. Hokama, I'd like to recognize Mr. Pontanilla. And I'll recognize you
right after that.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
increase study, understand that

Thank you, Chair. When they did the water rate
of it would be the wastewater increases also.

KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Urn ... as far as the increases themselves, they were
gonna be done at, in two phases for wastewater. And '07 Budget would be the second
one?
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, fine, thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: That was the intent, Mr. Pontanilla. As, as you recall, Members, we received a
proposal for a one-year increase. And this body asked them to come back with a two, a
two-year phase in. And so they provided us with, I believe two or three choices. And
then, as a body, we made a... a recommendation to the full Council for consideration.
That, so we anticipate a second year. Thank you. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, no, I just wanted to thank the Budget Director for
being .. .I think quite realistic and quite candid about the upcoming budget. And I wish
him well because we're looking at big, you know, basically this is ... February, well,
tomorrow is February. And he's got six weeks to finalize, go to the printers ... re-verify,
and then ... through the Mayor submit a budget to us in six weeks. Uh... so .. .I
appreciate his comments. And I'm sure we'll be spending many hours together,
Mr. Ginoza, going through that. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Member--oh, I'm sorry, Member Johnson? Please.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I just have one question. And this is just so I understand.
When, when we're looking at overall wastewater usage, it's impacted by--and I'll make
this very simplistic. Every time somebody flushes .. .(laughter) . .. if they flush more
often during a day, does that create a greater amount of wastewater that you must then
treat that's coming through the system?
... Or is it not that simple? .. .(laughter). ..
MR. TAYLOR: Yes, Ms. Johnson, it's, it's basically exactly that simple.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So how people could actually affect. .. a positive
bottom line and help to control. .. the expenses that we're incurring--just like they save on
electricity, just like they recycle and put less stuff in the landfill ...maybe what we should
do is educate them that. .. you know, what we used to do in the Virgin Islands, we had
signs posted everywhere.
this land of fun and sun, we only flush for number--or, we
never flush for number one .. .(laughter) . ..
ALL: .. .(laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and I'll tell you, it makes a difference ... (laughter) . ..
Because if people understand every time they flush ... ka ching, ka ching, ka ching. And
it's coming out of their pocket .. .(laughter). ..
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: .,. Thank you, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Very delicately--
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CHAIR KANE: Hopefully-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --delicately put.
CHAIR KANE: --the conversion from 7 gallon to 1.6 gallon flush toilets is making a difference.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... {laughter} . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: .. .{inaudible} . ..
CHAIR KANE: Anyway...Members, the Chair is ready for a recommendation. If there are no
further questions or comments, the Chair would like to proceed forward. It is with
reluctance, Members, and I, I. .. genuinely take to heart Mr. Hokama's comments ...
. . . that what should be before us is these requests based on the need for their number two
priority. Because the number one priority should be the electrical needs, and that they
have existing monies there, apparently, since it's been noted in their discussion... from
the Department and the Division that their second option if this is not approved, is that's
what they would have tapped to get that job done. So I appreciate Mr. Hokama's
comments. And I would ask the Division and the Department and for the Budget
Director to share with the rest that perhaps in the future when requests come down, we
understand what that top priority is from them and that the request is coming to
backup ...that top priority with the other things that are very important to keep things
going. With that, Members, the Chair will move forward with the request from the
Department to pass out of Committee the revised bill for an ordinance amending the
Fiscal Year '06 Budget for the County of Maui as it pertains to Estimated Revenues,
Department of Public Works Environmental Management, Total Operation, Operating
Appropriations and Total Appropriations regarding the Operating and Capital
Improvement Projects for BF-65, and filing of said communication.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Moved.
CHAIR KANE: It's been moved and seconded by Members Molina and .. .I believe Tavares or
Hokama, I'm sorry, got both of you, so I'll just say Tavares.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: .,. (inaudible). ..
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members Molina and Tavares moved and seconded. Discussion,
Members? Additional discussion? Mr. Hokama, comments? Ms., Ms. Tavares?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'll yield.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh. Yeah, just that. .. you know, I will support this at this
time, and I'm looking forward to the budget sessions when the various programs will
come to present what their budgetary needs might be. I know that we work at a
disadvantage right now because we have not yet received the CAFR for 2005. Yeah,
that's what we're waiting for, the 2005 end of the year thing. And, yes, I, I'm very
interested in what that budget is going to look like, as I'm sure we all are. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you.
· .. I understand the situation you're in, Mr. Chairman. Very difficult.
· .. I guess all our Standing Committee Chairs have great responsibility in providing us
with a sound recommendation.
· .. Saying that, Chairman, and you know, I, I was ... had my opportunity to state my
strong feelings about. .. departmental decision making. With reservations, I'll be
supporting this.
· .. Like the CAFR that Ms., my colleague from Up country mentioned, even that . .. by
our independent auditor has requested me for an extension.. .in submittal because they
cannot get the information either.
· .. And, Chairman, you know, my, my few final comments on this is that hopefully.. .if
we need to enact legislation, so be it. But I think the Council needs to be able to get
information that the IF AS provides so that we can see on a monthly basis what's the
financial standing. Maybe we could have headed off this need for 825,000 when certain
red flags go up ... either through the IF AS system or other reporting financial systems.
And maybe earlier. .. we might have been able to provide the Division with different type
of options or have them tell us how they were, they could have maybe ... anticipated
it disturbs me
it's waited whereby this is the
minimizing the need of this request.
request--825,000 dollars worth.
· .. And I know that it's the Wastewater .. . (laughter). " Division in front of us
currently, Mr. Chair. I think my comments can be applied to any Division, any
Department, not just Public Works. So I just share that with ... my colleagues because I
think as we get on and as those that have sat on more than one term has seen the
pattern.. .I hope we don't, but it appears maybe we going be in budget the whole term.
· .. Which is kind of ... (laughter) . .. sad .. . (laughter) . .. because then we take so much
time away from the other issues we need to be focusing on, Chairman. So thank you for
my opportunity to comment.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Any further discussion on this issue before us?
... Hearing none, Members, all in favor signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Opposed? Okay, let the record show it's unanimous with the Members present.
We have one excused, Member Mateo. The vote is 8-0-1. It'll move forward as a
recommendation to the full Council.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Johnson, Molina, Pontanilla,
Tavares, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Mateo.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of revised bill and FILING of
communication.

CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Taylor.
... Okay, Members, time now is 4:15. The next item on the agenda .. .is Budget and
Finance Item Number 52, which deals with two contacts--Contract Numbers 3505 for
construction of Kihei Recycling Redemption Center. .. the Fong Construction Company,
Limited, Deposit Beverage Container Program and Alternative Programs; and Contract
Number 3506 ... to ... designlbuild a steel building for a recycling materials recovery
facility, Phase 1, Job Number 0405P-64, David P. Ting and Sons, Inc., alternative
programs.

ITEM NO. 52:

CONTRACT NO. C3505 FOR CONSTRUCTION OF KIHEI
RECYCLING & REDEMPTION CENTER (FONG CONSTRUCTION
COMPANY, LIMITED; DEPOSIT BEVERAGE CONTAINER PROGRAM AND
ALTERNATIVE PROGRAMS); and

CONTRACT NO. C3506 TO DESIGN/BUILD A STEEL BUILDING
FOR A RECYCLING MATERIALS RECOVERY FACILITY,
PHASE I, JOB NO. 04/05/P-64 (DAVID P. TlNG AND SONS, INC.;
ALTERNATIVE PROGRAMS)
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CHAIR KANE: Members, the Committee is in receipt of these two contracts ... for construction
of the Kihei Recycling and Redemption Center at the South Maui Community Park. Also
the other contract, 06 ... between the County of Maui and David P. Ting and Sons, to
designlbuild a steel building for the recycling ...materials recovery facility, or MRF,
Phase 1. Members, at this time, I'll provide the Director of Public Works, as well as the
Director of Finance ... for opening remarks. But before I recognize them, Mr. Ginoza,
any opening remarks from you?
MR. GINOZA: No, I'll, I'll defer to the two gentlemen.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Gentlemen, Mr. Young and Mr. Arakawa, I'll let you decide who
goes first and who goes second.
NOTE:

Long pause.

MR. YOUNG: ... Thank you, Chair Kane .
. . . I'm, I'm here to provide status on the two contracts in question listed on the agenda.
And ... I'm, I'm gonna specifically refer to a response ...that was provided to your office
as a result of an inquiry made by your office ...
. . . on January 19th • I'm not sure if the Members have the reference communication-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Do they have ... {inaudible} . ..
MR. YOUNG: --that was sent-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... {inaudible} . ..
MR. YOUNG: --to you on, dated January 25 th • But if you like, I can read the response, it would,
it's like a 45-second response, and provide status of the two contracts question-CHAIR KANE: Hang-MR. YOUNG: --Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: --on one second. Okay, please-MR. YOUNG: Certainly.
CHAIR KANE: --Mr. Young? We're just making sure that it's in the binders. And I believe
that it is not in the binders. So-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: January 25 th __
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... {inaudible} . ..
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: There.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... communication, Chairman. The last page.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The last page .. .{inaudible} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It's there.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Item Number ...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... {inaudible} . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Responding to your January 19th.
CHAIR KANE: Item 53.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's only missing out of yours .. . {laughter} . ..
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, that's .. .{laughter} . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The original .. .(laughter). ..
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, yours, too?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Oh, you no more-CHAIR KANE: I get 'em.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: January ... (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR KANE: I get' em.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's supposed to be the last item.
CHAIR KANE: I was in the wrong folder.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .{inaudible} . .. Dain's one.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... {inaudible} . ..
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .(inaudible) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Young, thank you. We have that-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: --document available. Please-MR. YOUNG: Okay-CHAIR KANE: --proceed.
MR. YOUNG: With that, I won't belabor you with, by reading from it, but just for your
information, as a result of your communication, further examination of these contracts
were done in review of timeliness and determined to be out of compliance. Subsequent
conversations with the Department of Corporation Counsel and the Department of Public
Works have resulted in the effect that these contracts, the current status of these two
contracts are that they have been voided. As far as the status of the projects and
the ... progress or. ..procession of these projects into the future, I would defer upon the
direction of the Department of Public Works. If you have any questions as to, as far as
these contracts go, I'll be more than happy to ... respond. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members ...before we allow them to proceed ... you will note those two
communications--the January 19th , '06; and then the response, January 25 th , '06 from
Director Young. Just so you folks take note. Are there any questions in this area
regarding these two contracts? If you recall, we had these contracts pulled out back, and
I believe, November, if I'm not mistaken. Because we ...we noted... what we thought
may be a discrepancy. And then after further review and communication with the
Director, his response, dated January 25 th , will, will highlight for you ... some of the
issues that we, we ... we thought we had encountered. With that, any questions?
Ms. Tavares, question?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: A question regarding, you know, how, how something like
this happens to occur... what, what kinds of procedures are
place to catch this, you
know, earlier, early on ... from either the Budget Office or your office, Mr. Young?
MR. YOUNG: '" Yes, Ms. Tavares. Bluntly, this was .. .just a, a lapse in review .
. . . What my response doesn't impress ... upon the reader because it's, it's kind of muted,
is that these contracts were approved at the conclusion of, literally at the conclusion of
the prior fiscal year. And as I'm sure you're all aware, there's a lot of contracts that are
rapidly trying to move through the process, you know, within the last few weeks of the,
the closing of the year. So .. .in, in part ... the human error effort in terms of where these
funds were located--the fact that. .. multi-year funding for projects are not. .. not
uncommon and could procedurally, you know, occur and are, you know, are oftentimes
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required for a number of projects. However, what is uncommon is that for multi-year
funding of this nature and for a project this size to utilize operational funds. And so I
believe that in part that contributed to ... the lack of sufficient review. Also ... there were
some, you know, the system that Mr. Hokama mentioned earlier, IF AS, there are some
limitations on system that don't afford the reviewer that type of diligence in terms of
using the system. So there are internal controls that the Department of Finance has
to ... further tweak up. I don't, I, I would like to say that this occurrence, that this is the
first instance of this type of occurrence. But I would, wouldn't be that confident. So this
is a definite need in terms of improving, not only electronic systems, but also processes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Any other questions in this area before we proceed?
Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, just quickly for our, our Corporation Counsel.
· .. I read Mister. .. Young's January 25 th response ... (end a/tape, start 3B). .. that all of
this, from the contractor's standpoint, they follow the process, they put in their bid, they
got a agreement.
· . . Is there any outstanding concerns or financial responsibilities we may need to be
made aware of...regarding obligations on, on part of the County?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, my understanding is that notice to proceed was not
issued in either of these contracts. So ...that's one thing.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MS.

VILLAROSA: The, our contract, general terms and conditions do contain
provisions to allow the County to cancel the contract.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: So legally, we are, you know, we're able to do that. Urn ...
· .. that's, that's what I know of, at this point-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah-MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: --as far as obligations under these two contracts.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, thank you. Well, I, I'm happy to hear, Mr. Chairman, you
know, Finance Director Young's comment. And .. .I'm sure he is aware that we have
already caught contracts in the past that either couldn't prove certification of funds and
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yet contracts were executed ... or wrong account numbers have been assigned ... for the
source of funding. Or when you look at the contract page, there's so many scratches,
initials, changes, adds, deletions .. .it makes you wonder. .. how did that contract ever get,
in the first place, executed, originally. So I appreciate the Director's--how... how I
understood your comments, Mr. Young, in how... maybe .. .improvements will be able to
be implemented to either minimize or eliminate ... concerns that. .. make us review
certain type of contracts before the, for, on behalf of the County.
NOTE:

Silence.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: '" Other than that, I am happy to, Chairman, to consider some of
the improvements Mr. Young ... has mentioned, as well as whether or not we should
consider having some reasonable limited access ... to some of that data so we can be
current on ... on our oversight responsibility on the County's finances, also. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama.
Ms. Anderson?

Any further questions at this ... at this stage?

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, I, I would just like to know what. .. what
the ...repercussions to ... getting these... recycling and redemp ...redemption centers
built will be because of this.
NOTE:

Pause.

MR. ARAKAWA: ... Councilmember Anderson, this particular contract that was voided.. .it
intended to have a redemption center built within the ...Kihei Regional Park site. And
since that contract has been voided, we ...will be looking at doing a
temporary... recycling and redemption center... probably at the old Puunene Airport site
and will be looking for a permanent site within the Kihei District.
... Once we can do at least some preliminary planning on the permanent site, then
come forward to
Council for a CIP on that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So that means
recycling ..
Kihei now?

that happens ... there's currently no

MR. ARAKAWA: We are ... our site, as you know, will be displaced by the ...Hale Mahaolu
Elderly Housing Project. They are planning to start construction... fairly soon, as I
understand. So therefore, we ... as I mentioned, we are trying to establish a temporary
site within the old Puunene Airport area to take care of recycling and redemption needs
for the Kihei District in the interim, until we can get a permanent site up and running.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And there's no other.. .1ocations available? I mean, that is
such an inconvenient. .. distance for people to travel to ... deal with recycling.
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MR. ARAKAWA:

Urn ...not that I'm aware of at this point. The old Puunene Airport site

IS ...

. . . attractive in the sense that it is all County-owned land at this point. And it is vacant.
Most of it is also vacant as well. So.. .it can be up and running rather quickly. If we are
going to find another temporary site in Kihei ...we'd have to look at permit issues as
well. Because as you know, all of the land...makai of Piilani Highway is in, is within
the SMA. So there are those issues that need to be considered as well. But anyway, if
you have any other ideas, we'd be happy to-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: .. .(laughter). ..
MR. ARAKAWA: --consider 'em.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'll think about it. I'm glad you clarified because it does
say here "South Maui Community Park". And, and it was intended for the "Regional
Park"-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
MR. ARAKAWA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --space. And is there anything in the ... South Maui Parks
and Open Space Plan that addresses the Regional Park? I mean.. .I'm kind of glad this
happened because I've seen that Plan and I don't see any place for a steel built, a steel
building ...
. . . or for a recycling center at the Regional Park.
MR. ARAKA WA: The ... only the recycling and redemption center was proposed within the
Kihei Regional Park. The ... steel building that you're referring to was for the materials
recovery facility. That's not within the Kihei ... Regional-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh-MR. ARAKAWA: --Park.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --thank you.
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, but even still, I mean, I would hope that you would
not. .. try to put this ... permanently at the Regional Park.
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· .. Because I don't see it in, in the Plan that was done. And it would, I mean, the space
is pretty much utilized and it would displace something else. So .. .I think we need to ...
· .. look hard for another place to put it. .. that is convenient. And, yeah, I know it's
convenient for, to use Puunene because we own it, but. . .I don't think you're gonna get
as much use as you would if it was in Kihei proper.
MR. ARAKAWA:
that. .. we ...

In just conferring with our Division Chief, he's ... also indicating

· .. also, we also will be trying to stay at the ... existing recycling, recycling and
redemption site ...
· .. in the .. .in the interim as long as possible. That's, so that's another-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thanks.
MR. ARAKAWA: --option. I, I'm not sure exactly how long we can pull that off, but that is
also an option.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
Treatment Plant in Kihei?
MR. ARAKAWA: No,

location

IS

entrance to the Wastewater

the current location is on... old Welakahao Road.

... That's makai ofPiilani Highway. And actually, that's right across the entrance to the
Kihei Wastewater Treatment Plant along the portion of old Welakahao Road, which the
Council closed .. .I believe it was last year some time.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ., . {inaudible} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, I know where that is.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions? Ms. Anderson?
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Have you considered the Wastewater Reclamation Facility
site?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Mr. Takamine, if you can identify yourself for the record, please. Thank
you.
MR. TAKAMINE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This, my name is Tracy Takamine, the Solid Waste
Division Chief. Well, first of all, just to clarify ... on, on the temporary site. We had
a... discussion recently... during one of. .. the MD's Brown lunch meeting, and we came
up with some ideas. And Milton...well, I didn't, I didn't share with Milton yet, but-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: .. . {laughter} . ..
MR. TAKAMINE: --one of the ideas was to-ALL: .. . {laughter} . ..
MR. TAKAMINE: .. .(laughter). ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... {inaudible} . .. {laughter} . ..
MR. TAKAMINE: . . . keep the, keep the current. .. keep the ... recycle facility ... or, or
temporarily relocate it to the site that we are, we're planning to put the permanent site on.
Because we already have ... about to get a grading permit and we are permitted to use that
site. So we, we're looking at make, possibly just doing some grading there and
temporarily putting it on the site where it's supposed to be until we can get the... funding
back for this project.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The site where it's "supposed to be"? Mr. Takamine,
explain.
MR. TAKAMINE: On the Central Maui Park site.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... Central Maui Park site?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: .. .{inaudible} ...
MR. ARAKAWA: This is the Kihei Regional Park site.
MR. TAKAMINE: Yeah, Kihei, yeah, Kihei Regional.
MR. ARAKAWA: Now--
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CHAIR KANE: This is makai of the road?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Go ahead, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Why do you say that it's "supposed to be in the Regional
Park"? I've never seen... the only plan I've seen for the Regional Park doesn't have that
included in it.
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, we've had some discussions with the, the Parks and Recreation
Department. And it is a ...
. . . I don't know, 1. .. we have an agreement, basically, for a temp, it's a temporary use
for an in ... an interim period of time. And it is in the comer of new Welakahao Road
and...Piilani Highway. So it is .. .in the southern comer of the Regional Park site. I
believe their master plan had called for some tennis courts in that general area. The
tennis courts are still. .. planned by Parks. And the ... proposed recycling and redemption
center is just adjacent to that. But it is-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Is it. . .is it gonna displace a building that was supposed to
be there? Do you know?
MR. ARAKAWA: .. , I don't know off hand. I know we've ... reviewed ...well, we sent the
plans over to Parks. And it, it has been approved by the, the Parks Department.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chairman, if I could just deviate just slightly since
we're on this subject?
KANE: And be, and before you do that--only because we've already deviated, I wanted
to ask questions on the part that Mr. Young went over on the letters and the
response ... and then I was gonna provide the Department and Division to give us an
overview first, and then provide questions. And we've kind of gone beyond that already,
so ...would you like them to provide us some comments so that may answer some
questions or even ... (laughter) . .. make us ask more questions, or would you like to
proceed and then we'll go after that? I, I'm just offering you the option and that we've
kind of gone beyond the scope of where the Chair wanted to lead us. It's up to you. Just
to finish your thought is fine.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I, I'll just yield, Mr. Chairman. I mean.. .I do have a
concern that, that this Regional Park is being designed in a manner that doesn't comport
with the Plan that was developed by the community... by input from the Community to
Chris Hart and Partners and, who the County spent a lot of money to develop this Plan.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's not a Regional Park.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --I think that that's something that needs to be brought up
in another Committee, perhaps Ms. Johnson's Committee-COUNCILMEMBER T AVARES: The park is mauka of the highway.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --so I just wanted to mention that.
CHAIR KANE: No, okay. And thank you. Appreciate it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Members, any other... and then I'll, again, I'll recognize Mr. Arakawa to
provide some comments regarding both contracts and the, the intent of those contracts
and why we're ... at, why we're at where we're at. Mr. Arakawa, any additional
comments?
MR. ARAKAWA: ... I'll just give you some general. .. background information regarding that
Kihei Recycling and Redemption Center which we actually started discussing. As was
mentioned, this particular site is about an acre of that southern mauka comer of the
Regional Park site. And we did work with the Parks Department on the site plan. And
there were a number of permits that also were required. We had met with the Kihei
Community Association as well, on the site plan. And .. .the site plan did undergo review
by the Maui Planning Commission, who granted approval for that redemption center.
So .. .it had gone through a number of permitting hoops to get to this point.
So ... basically that's ... the story on the recycling and redemption center. Mr. Chairman,
I can go over... some of the... background on the materials recovery facility.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, we'l1 wait on that.

handle each--

MR. ARAKAWA: Oh.
CHAIR KANE: --of 'em in, separately.
MR. ARAKAWA: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: If you don't mind .
. . . Okay, Members, any additional questions in this area regarding the Kihei Recycling
Redemption Center? I will note, Members ... for the FY '06 Budget which we just
completed last year, the Chair, with Staff, wasn't able to identify in the Budget--and even
went as far as looking into the minutes for a discussion on this Kihei Recycling
Redemption Center. So ifit was in.. .if it wasn't in the FY '06, it was something prior to
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that. And, and based on that, I wanted to ask a question, just considering that we weren't
infonned of this. I mean, Member Anderson kind of touched on it that. .. she wasn't
aware ofthis plan to have it somewhere where we haven't had previous infonnation on.
. . . We wanted to ask for the history of how this project developed and what. .. what
exactly needs to be built. Because you've already gone, as far as discussion, a temporary
site since it's being displaced by the ... Hale Mahaolu senior housing project. So you're
discussing interim .
. . . Can you give us more infonnation regarding ... you know, the pennanent solution that
you folks are looking for? Or if that is something that you folks have flushed out? Or if
you're not prepared to provide your comments, then we can accept that as well. And
finally, can we ex ... expect something coming in the '07 Budget regarding a pennanent
facility?
MR. ARAKA WA: '" Let, let, let me at least. .. give you some of the background for why this
particular site in the Kihei Regional Park was ... pursued. We, we do have an existing
recycling and redemption center off of old Welakahao Road. And...that site, although it
has some limitations, had been working quite well for us. However, when Hale Mahaolu
came forward with their senior housing development, we basically... were scrambling to
find another. .. replacement site. And so that. .. was the impetuous for talking with the
Parks Department and coming forward with a new redemption center site. And maybe,
let, let me tum it over to Tracy Takamine and he can go over some of our... budget
issues ... for '07.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Takamine?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yeah, Council Chair, in tenns of the ... how we're gonna fund it, we, we are
coming in with the FY '07 Budget as I, and putting this in as a CIP project.
Apparently... the current project that was just voided was put in as a O&M project and
not CIP funds. So we are rectifying that and we'll be submitting it to Council. .. as a CIP
project for
'07.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, questions? Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Not a question but a ...
. . . clarification. The park that probably they are talking about is the Kihei Community
Park. The Regional Park is mauka of the highway-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --which is the 350 acres. The one that they talking about
is, I think it's between 40 and 45 acres. So when they, when they say "regional", you
know, confusion.. .is that the Regional Park is mauka ofthe highway, 350 acres.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: 150.
COUNCILMEMBERPONTANILLA: Oh, sorry, 150 acres.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... {inaudible} . ..
CHAIR KANE: ... Okay. Any questions or comments? I know that was comments by
Mr. Pontanilla. Any questions? Ms ... oh, I'm sorry... Ms. Anderson, followed by
Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I was just gonna say that it would be helpful to have a
map ... because.. .I'm very confused now.
CHAIR KANE: Well, we'll, we'll ask for that and...we'll, we'll make that request known now
so when it does come down-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: --that we'll have some additional information in the '07 Budget since that's
when it's coming. The, the intent, Members, of this is to discuss these two
contracts--what the intents were, where the monies coming from, how we arrived at those
monies, which there's still questions that are gonna be asked ... so we understand and we
can avoid situations in the future. But we need to have those things flushed out.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And we need to make sure that we're all talking about the
same location.
CHAIR KANE: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: There's reference here to the "South Maui Community
Park", and then Mr. Arakawa mentioned the "South Maui Regional Park", and
Mr. Pontanilla's now talking about a mauka 150 acres. I thought we traded
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (inaudible). ..
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: We didn't?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: We never did. No.
CHAIR KANE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Not yet.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It's still ours.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... (laughter) . .. Not yet?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: .. .{laughter} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, it was an attempt. Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Anyway, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares, you have the floor. No questions?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.
CHAIR KANE: Any other questions in this area, Members? I know that there were .. .in Fiscal
Year '05 there was 193,500 dollars, and in Fiscal Year '06, 126,944 dollars .
. . . What was that originally gonna be used for? Can you ... Mr. Ginoza? I know that
those are dollar amounts that you folks have identified. And we're just trying to
understand what that money was gonna be used for.
MR. GINOZA: '" Excuse me, Mr. Chairman ... could you repeat the question?
CHAIR KANE: ... Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... (inaudible) . ..
NOTE:

Pause.

CHAIR KANE: ... You know
that I can go rectify later.
NOTE:

that's okay.

get back to

that's something

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Why don't you go ahead and proceed with the ... the MRF, the interim
MRF ...
. . . and how you folks ...
. . . how you folks plan to move forward now that this contract has been canceled.
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MR. ARAKAWA: ... The voided contract for the materials recovery facility ... the, the intent
for that was to build a MRF, basically a, a steel building on a leased site within the
Central Maui Baseyard. And... basically for the monies that were available ... the, the
thought was we'd lease the site, build a steel building... provide the equipment for the
MRF, and then have a vendor run it for us. However... for various reasons, this vision
turned out to be more expensive ... than the funds that we have available to spend for the,
this particular purpose. With the voiding of this contract. .. what we'd .. .like to do is
simply do a more open-ended request for proposals for a material recoveries ...recovery
facility and just have the vendor... come forward with a site ... and tell us what he can do
for a given sum of money. And it may not be exactly what we had originally
envisioned... with, with our... the project that we had in the voided contract, but it will
be, hopefully, a project that will be within our means. So that's what we intend to do
with the Fiscal Year '06 monies that we have available for a materials recovery, an
interim materials recovery facility.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Questions? Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, hearing Director Arakawa... share, share his thoughts
with us just now, can I. .. would it be a... a correct assumption on this Committee's part,
Mr. Ginoza, that 360,000 from the '05 Budget will be lapsed? And then, there's no
further encumbrances, so that money wi11lapse and become part of your carryover?
MR. GINOZA: Yes, with respect to the 360,000, it will lapse.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So saying that, we have approximately--and, again I'm
rounding it off, about. .. about 900,000 dollars. So my question to the Department is
how much more would it take before ... we are being asked for a permanent material
recoveries facility? And if it's .. .in the near-term and it's already part of your
integrated ... plan ... and you don't see major changes on the direction of, of that
integrated plan... does it still make sense for us to use 900,000 dollars for a very
temporary facility?
NOTE:

Silence.

MR. ARAKA WA: ... Councilmember LL'-"."....,'u ...
. . . I guess at this point, we ... you know, this interim MRF has been a project that we
have pursued for, you know, the past several years. We've tried couple approaches
and... they, they really have been more expensive than what we have money available,
available to do. We think that. .. with the current funding, it's basically gonna be a
different, a more open-ended approach. Basically, we're gonna say, basically, we have a
certain amount of money available ... and ask vendors to tell us what they can do with
that. So rather than... providing the site, providing the building and providing equipment
and asking a vendor to run it, we, we're just trying to take a more open-ended approach.
And .. .I think the extent of the services that could be provided under that type of scenario
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would be ... perhaps less than what we would... would like to have ultimately. So, you
know, it does fit in with, I think, the ... the picture to have, to have this project done as an
interim type of situation. Now as far as the ...the permanent location for a materials
recovery facility .. .I believe that this should be discussed as part of the update for the
Integrated Solid Waste Management Plan for the Division. Exactly when that would
occur? I think would.. .it, it's open to question at this point in time.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I'm, I'm sure you, you were made aware, Director, that the
Big Island has some similar movement in, in their Solid Waste program, and they're
looking at. .. as my understanding, a dirty MRF--and 1. .. I'm sure you, you're
more .. .informed than, you know, the use of those type of phrases... regarding material
recovery. Even for the temporary... what is your percentage of diversion you looking
from the landfill? Ten percent? Twenty? What is, what is your, your Division's hopes
or, or target then? That the temporary MRF will be able to divert ...
. . . your best estimate for, for today, Director?
MR. ARAKAWA: At, at this point, it, it be very difficult to speculate. You know, we're going
out for an RFP. And ...we just have to see what the vendors ...will propose.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: In the old, in the RFP .. .in the contract that was terminated, was
there a target percentage of diversion that this temporary MRF will try and achieve to
take away from the Central Maui Landfill? Like is our hope we would be able to divert
15 to 30 percent?
MR. ARAKAWA: Uh.. .I think even there we had... had in mind... how the facility would look
and what it would do. But I don't think we went as far as ... specifying the goals for the
operator. An operator, of course, was not chosen yet. So ... yeah, I, I just can't answer
your question at this point.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I just share that, Mr. Director, 'cause it would help us be able to,
down the road, weigh the merits of whether or not we wanna continue
that same
direction, we want some revision
the direction, or we wanna...terminate it and stop
pouring money down that sinkhole. If that what, that's, if that is what it really is. So I
just ask that maybe in your new RFP that. .. that may be some of the things you might
wanna consider... that could help not only your Division, but help us .. .in the review,
during the review process to see whether or not we're achieving ... (laughter) . .. what
we would like to achieve and whether or not that's the ... or not the financial resources
that is being requested is, is adequate. Because if it's already short in the request of
financial resources, then more than likely we going be short on achieving our goals
because it had no hell of a chance to make it anyway. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you ... Mr. Hokama. Members, I'm gonna take a moment. .. to provide
some of the background of, or the history of that. .. the interim MRF. If you, Members
recall, in October of '02, the County of Maui Recycling Task Force issued its report
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recommending establishing the temporary MRF with a permanent facility to follow. So
right now, we're talking about the interim, not even the permanent one, but the interim
one. Fiscal Year '04, Administration proposed, if you Members recall, a $4 recycling
surcharge... to be used solely for diversion programs. And these included hauling for
recycling drop boxes ... establishing a materials recovery facility, redemption center
operation, curbside collection, and household hazardous waste drop-off And this is per
the minutes of the April 10t\ '03 Budget and Finance Committee meeting here in this
Chamber. Also, the Council increased the appropriation for the Diversion Program by
450,000 dollars for the interim MRF, and another 200,000 for the recycling drop box
program. Now, that was Fiscal Year '04. Fiscal Year '05, Administration said they
could not locate an existing facility, and is looking at leasing property at Central Maui
Baseyard--which was mentioned .. .in the comments--and constructing a building and
contracting out the operation for early '05. And that's, again, from minutes from
April 15th of '04 right here in this Chamber. And during that session, the Budget
appropriated 512,816 dollars for contractual services, and another 452,000 dollars for
other services. Just this current Fiscal Year, '06 ...we again appropriated 450,000 dollars
specifically for the interim ...materials recovery facility. And... on June 30 th , '05, which
you folks have in your packet, in the folder, the contract was for 1.257 million dollars. It
was entered to .. .identifying two sources of money.
First, the 360,000 that
Member Hokama referenced in his remarks for '05. And then the 897,079 dollars
... (end aftape, start 4A) . .. alternative program funds. And, and as we know now, that
the contract was canceled.. .1ast week or on the 11th of January, due to insufficient funds
to complete the project. And that's per Mr. Young's letter. The question ...that I have,
and once I ask this question, I'll ... recognize you, Ms. Anderson, is if, may, I don't know
if maybe Mr. Young would be able to respond. Please help us understand how the
Division was able to commit 879,079 dollars of Fiscal Year '06 monies for the MRF
when the Budget authorized 450,000 specifically.
NOTE:

Pause while Mr. Young approached the mic.

CHAIR KANE: ... In other words, Mr. Young, maybe you can help us understand how the
monies became available
the alternative programs funds..
we identified
specifically 450,000 dollars for a budget authorization.
NOTE:

Very long silence.

MR. YOUNG: ... Thank you, Mr. Chair.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (inaudible) . ..
MR. YOUNG: .,. Yeah. I. . .in, in looking through this issue, it, this gets back to my reference
about the ... the IF AS on system issue--in that on, on system, there was reflected that
there was sufficient funds ... available, regardless of what was the FY '06 Budget
appropriation. And to be more specific, this was in, due in part to a...to a... a lapsed
contract or a... contract issued in a prior year that was subsequently canceled or not used.
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The funds ... became available. And how it relates operationally is that on system, when
the user looks at it, it, the funds look. .. the funds are there. But in terms of, they're not
legally appropriate to be .. .deployed, pending, without pending, you know, certification
from Council. So ... that, in this particular instance, it was a combination of the ... the
lack of the system ... service as well as ... you know, the human reviewer error.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, and I know this is very recent, so I guess my next question .. .I, I'll couch
it in such a way, since this is just, in a matter of weeks this was discovered. The question
I was gonna ask is are there internal controls in place that would prevent. .. the
Administration from, in this case, you know ... an apparent overspending situation? Are
you folks now looking at a way to service this? And I don't know if that was specifically
described to Mr. Hokama's point made earlier, but are you folks looking at that, or can
you give us, maybe, a specific description of what you're attempting to do to avoid this
happening again?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, well, there are financial controls in place already that should prevent such
occurrences from occurring, you know, from happening ... through a series of checks and
double checks. So it is disconcerting that this particular instance has ... you know,
occurred even with the system shortfalls that are on, that are .. .IF AS. So an evaluation is
underway in terms of looking at what are the human controls that are in place, the
processes, basically. And if we are at a point where, you know, because these
projects ...these contracts were signed at the end of the Fiscal Year, during this mad rush
of signing contracts, if that has, in essence, overtaxed the existing process controls ... and
if that is the case, what measures need to be put into place ... to prevent that from
happening, and if these measures need, you know, already exist or if they, there has to be
an examination of what additional capacities have to be added. But right now, you know,
we are looking at how, how were these able to happen. And the assumption is that it was
due to an overtaxing of, of the, the time frame. If that is the case, that's, you know, to
me, I, at least that's something I, I know that I can address as the Director. But. . .if, if
it's something, you know, more severe of, like ... you know, just lack of adequate internal
controls, that's afar greater . .. question and concern for me, if you know, that, the issue
of the rushed time frame aside. So, yes, we are taking a look at it and as it progresses,
I'll be happy to advise your office of our progress, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Young. I appreciate it. And... and, Members, the Chair
felt it was necessary to ask that question, obviously, in light of 897,000 dollar. .. glitch, if
you will. And, and so it's something that. .. there's internal controls that prevent even on
the smaller scales, a lot of littler ones that may pass during the mad rush of. .. fiscal year
end. So ...we're just making sure that we can assist and work with the Department to, to
close those loops. Ms. Anderson, thank you for yielding the floor. I really appreciate it.
We, I, I felt it was necessary to get that question across.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, thank you very much, Mr. Chair. Appreciate that.
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· .. My question isn't so much to do with money because you guys are handling that very
well. Why was Kihei chosen if, if the idea is ... and I'm sorry that I've been out of the
loop on all the discussions previous to this, so I'm not as up to speed on this issue as
other Members. But correct me if my, if my understanding is wrong, but the idea is to
take materials and separate out those things that can be recycled and those things that
can't. And, and those that can't then go to the landfill. Is that correct?
MR. TAKAMINE: '" Mr. Chair-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Basically?
MR. TAKAMINE: --I'll, I'll answer that question. Basically...maybe what I'd clarify, this
MRF that we're talking about, it is not separating like the Big Island where they, they're
gonna... dump a truckload of trash and physically take out the recyclable materials and
then take the ... "trash" as you call it, to the landfill. This MRF is, is actually taking
clean material. It'll, it's already sorted, basically. So the intent for this MRF was to be
an indoor, covered ... facility versus the one that's now being used by Maui Disposal,
which is outdoors . . .in the weather. So ... the material that would come to this facility is
already sorted. I mean, you're talking about materials coming from the drop box centers
that we, we maintain, the County, and also from commercial dealers. And ...
· .. it'll be just, basically, sorted before any type of contamination and then... bale'd and
then shipped out.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, I, I am totally... misunderstanding this, then. You're
saying that this is just a place to take the recyclables that we collect and sort them ... for
further processing?
· .. Are there any building materials involved in this at all?
MR. ARAKAWA: May, may I, before answering that question, turning the mic over to Tracy, I,
I just wanted to clarify that this particular contract for the materials recovery facility is
intended to be for the island of Maui.
not only for the, you know, the
recyclables. So the, the MRF is intended to be an island-wide facility. I mean,
that's ...what I wanted to mention.
CHAIR KANE: '" Mr. Takamine, continue your comments.
MR. TAKAMINE: Yeah, and the, and the location was gonna be in the Central Maui Baseyard
area.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So why is it now in Kihei?
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MR. TAKAMINE: I know, now, okay, I think we're talking about two different issues. The
first one we talked about was the Kihei Recycle Center, it's the drop box center that's
similar to the one at-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, I'm asking about the MRF-MR. TAKAMINE: --Maui Community College.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --facility specifically. What materials will be taken to the
MRF ...
MR. TAKAMINE: That-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... facility?
MR. T AKAMINE: Okay, so, so the MRF facility, our intent was to locate it in the Central Maui
Baseyard. And the materials that would be, have taken to that facility would be
cardboard, newspaper. .. and plastics.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So it is recyclable materials.
MR. TAKAMINE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And it's, it's to facilitate all the ...recycling ... areas
without, throughout the County, a place to bring all of it to, I guess, sort it and further
process it.
MR. TAKAMINE: That, that is the intent--to be a central location for not only the County drop
box sites, but also, I guess, eventually for commercial. .. drop offs.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So why, why can't we put it Central Maui? Why would
it be in Kihei? That seems like ... an awful long ways out of-MR. TAKAMINE: No, that. .. that's why I mentioned, I believe .. .I mentioned that
was to put it in the Central Maui Baseyard, which is, you know, by, near the Humane
Society.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Uh-huh.
MR. TAKAMINE: Not in Kihei.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: .. . {inaudible} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
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'" Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Any further questions? The Chair. .. has exhausted
his line of questioning. Members?
... Hearing none, the Chair's recommendation is to file . .. the contracts, as well as the
County Communication that served as the vehicle for these contracts. Members, that's
the Chair's recommendation.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Moved, Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR KANE: It's moved and seconded by Members Hokama and Tavares. Any further
discussion in this area, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. I, I think ...
. . . you know, I'm gonna be requesting this, that the Public Works Department provide
the Committee an overview in regards to this particular MRF building. I, I seen.. .I think
it was year-and-a-half, maybe two years ago ... a proposal. .. not knowing that it was
really going through at that time. And you're right, there's no monies budgeted for the
MRF building. So ...thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further discussion .. .these items for filing? Hearing none, all
in favor say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Opposed? Let the record show it's unanimous for the Members president,
present. Excused are Members Mateo and Molina from the vote.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Johnson,
Tavares, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.
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EXC.:

Councilmembers Mateo and Molina.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FILING of contracts.

CHAIR KANE: Members, we're gonna take a brief recess. Uh .. .is 10 minutes--we have one
final item. We wanted to do the contracts because it rolls right in nicely to the final item
that's there ...that is a budget amendment for Solid Waste. And ... Administration and
Department has informed me that this is an item that they hope that you folks can take the
time to go over 'cause it's important for them. So I'm hoping that we have the quorum
available. I think one Member may have to leave. We'll have six. So hang in there,
Members .. .(laughter). .. and the Chair will try to keep it as tight as possible so that we
can move forward. Members, it's 5:05. Ten minutes okay, 5:15 reconvene?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, 5:15 we'll reconvene. We stand in recess ... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

5:04 p.m.

RECONVENE:

5:17 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: .. .(gavel) . .. Okay, Members, let's reconvene. Thank you for allowing that
break. Members, the Chair will direct your attention to the final item of our agenda this
afternoon... Budget and Finance Item Number 66, amending the Fiscal Year '06 Budget
regarding the Department of Public Works and Environmental Management, the Solid
Waste Fund.
ITEM NO. 66:

AMENDING
2006 BUDGET (DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND
ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT, SOLID WASTE FUND) (C.c. No. 06-7)

KANE: Members, the Committee is receipt of County
Number 06-7
from the Budget Director, transmitting the following. First, a proposed bill entitled: the
bill for an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year '06 Budget for the County of Maui as it
pertains to estimated revenues, Department of Public Works and Environmental
Management, Total Operating Appropriations, and Total Appropriations ... Operating and
Capital Improvement Projects. Members, the purpose of the proposed bill is to, A,
increase the "Carryover/Savings" in the General Fund ...
. . . and, and the "Solid Waste Fund"; B, increase the "Transfer from the General Fund"
to the "Solid Waste Fund"; C, increase the appropriation for the Administration, Solid
Waste ... Solid, excuse me, Program, Solid Waste Fund; D, increase the appropriation for
the "Landfill Disposal Program, Solid Waste Fund" and increase the EP count from 22 to
29; E, increase the appropriation for the "Residential Collection Program"; and
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F, increase the appropriation for the "Diversion Program, Solid Waste Fund" by the
stated amount. Two, we have a Certification of Additional Revenues" for the Fiscal
Year '06, dated December 29th • And that dollar amount is there. And I believe as I'm
speaking, we are receiving a handout that provides the Members with some adjusted
numbers. So, Members, give the Chair a moment to move folders in and out of the way.
NOTE:

Pause.

CHAIR KANE: ... Okay. Members, you should have in front of you ... a document dated
January 2ih, 2006 ...
· .. with attachments, Members, including the Certification. So everything that we have
discussed on the proposed agenda item should be located in that packet. I believe we
have revisions. And I'll allow the Budget Director to highlight those revisions. And then
Mr. Arakawa, with Mr. Takamine, can provide us with additional comment in this area.
And Mr. Kalbert Young has remained as a resource person for any additional questions.
Mr. Ginoza?
MR. GINOZA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Increases in the equivalent personnel and operating costs
are required for the closure of the old phase of the Central Maui Landfill and the opening
of the Phase IV-A of the Central Maui Landfill, and other unforeseen increases in
operating costs. The request is to appropriate from Carryover/Savings in the Solid Waste
Fund and the savings resulting from the voiding of two contracts in aggregate 538,978
dollars and 599,860 dollars from savings in the General Fund. Additional funds of
1,183 ... 183,838 dollars are to meet the increased cost of the increased... equivalent
personnel and other unforeseen operating cost of the Solid Waste Fund. We ...we have
adjusted the original supplemental appropriation for the following items. We initially
started with a total of 1. .. 1,499,311 dollars in previous supplemental appropriation
request.
We have made the following adjustments in the most recent revised
supplemental appropriation. If you refer to the schedule of Solid Waste Division Fiscal
Year '06 supplemental budget proposal--and it's a grid form ...
· .. the increases in
revised supplemental appropriation resulted from the overtime
pay which was 170,000 in the previous supplemental appropriation, has now increased to
250,000.
· .. And, and the ... expansion positions, it was decreased because of the time that's
required to ... to hire the persons. So it decreased form 98,365 to 44,346.
· .. The other adjustments that-CHAIR KANE: Excuse me-MR. GINOZA: --was made--
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CHAIR KANE: --I'm sorry for interrupting. I, I just wanna make sure that all the Members are
following along with a document that you have before you. So if you can hold that up,
please?
MR. GINOZA: It's a gridded... grid... gridded form.
CHAIR KANE: ... And that's located... Staff, if you can assist us?
MS. SAKAMOTO: It's the last page-CHAIR KANE: It's on the last page in the .. .item, yeah?
MS. SAKAMOTO: It's the one that Lance-MR. TAGUCHI: Separate.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It was just handed out.
NOTE:

Pause.

CHAIR KANE: ... Okay ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah ...
CHAIR KANE: Not, not this one, yeah?
MS. SAKAMOTO: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: This one?
MS. SAKAMOTO: Yes.
CHAIR KANE:

is the one that you're going over, right here?

MR. GINOZA: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, so it looks like this if you can... okay?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: And I, I'm sorry for interrupting there, Mr. Ginoza. Go ahead. Proceed.
MR. GINOZA: And the other decrease is the Kihei Recycling Center, which on the original
cont. .. appropriation request was 338,454 dollars. And for the current, revised
supplemental appropriation is zero. There was also an entry in the previous appropriation
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request for 3,000 dollars for the One Main Plaza rental.
removed.

And that has since been

CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MR. GINOZA: So the current ...
CHAIR KANE: It's not this one.
MR. GINOZA: ... amount of supplemental appropriation is 1,183,838.
CHAIR KANE: '" Okay. Members, if you're like me, then... the numbers that were being
read is not what I see on top-MR. GINOZA: ... (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR KANE: --the paper that I have. But the bottom line number .. .(laughter) . .. is the
same.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR KANE: So we'll. .. we'll at least start with that and then maybe we need to backup
and ... get the same document that you're reading off of so we can follow along with you.
Members, are you folks experiencing ... (laughter) . .. the same thing that the Chair just
explained? Okay. So, Mr. Ginoza, the document that we got handed out to us looked
like this?
MR. GINOZA: Right.
CHAIR KANE: And the numbers that you were citing are not located on the form that we have
been handed.
MR. GINOZA: That's correct. I,
CHAIR KANE: So

I apologize.

you can ...

MR. GINOZA: '" Can I. .. start ... (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR KANE: We'll let you start again. And, and if you can, so we can follow along so that
you don't have to deal with questions that may be ...
MR. GINOZA: ... Okay. The premium pay... the, the revised supplemental. .. appropriation is
requesting 250,000. The previous appropriation request was 170,000.
NOTE:

Silence.
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MR. GINOZA: .. , So that's an increase . . .in overtime request of80,000.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's not on here either.
CHAIR KANE: And, again, that's not on here, too. So you know what, Members-COUNCIL MEMBERS: .. .(inaudible) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Members, what we'll do, instead of doing that-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... (laughter) . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, he, Chair-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR KANE: --the Chair's suggestion is to look at the revised bill and let's walk through the
revised bill.
MR. GINOZA: I, I'm sorry.
CHAIR KANE: Okay? And I think that may... well...we can attempt to-MR. GINOZA: ... (laughter) . .. Yeah-CHAIR KANE: --since there are changes there all along the way.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah... Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any suggestion to help us along would be welcome.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Maybe if Mr. Ginoza would consider taking it by, by those bold
brackets, Administration--'cause under Administration you have "premium pay".
MR. GINOZA: I, I'm sorry-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Under "Landfill Disposal", you have "premium pay".
MR. GINOZA: Yeah.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So maybe if you take it by bold brackets and, and run it through that
way, then maybe we can follow you ... much, much better-MR. GINOZA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --Budget Director, if, Chairman, you would allow?
CHAIR KANE: No, like I said, whatever it takes for us to-MR. GINOZA: And I apologize-CHAIR KANE: --on the same page .. .(laughter) . ..
MR. GINOZA: I, I didn't realize there were two "premium pays". But, yes, under Landfill
Disposal. ..bold... section, there's premium pay and there's a Index Code of917112.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. GINOZA: The, the current. .. supplemental appropriation is at 250,000. The previous
request was 170,000. And that's a 80,000 increase from the previous .
. . . On the next line, the expansion positions, the previous request was 98,365. And the
current request is 44,346. So that, that's a decrease of54,019 dollars.
CHAIR KANE: How much? Fifty what?
MR. GINOZA: 54,019 dollars .
.. . And ...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Hmm ...
MR. GINOZA: ... what is not on this, on this schedule is the Kihei Recycling Center in the
previous appropriation of 338,454 dollars, which is now not included in this current
appropriation.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Okay.
MR. GINOZA: The other, the remaining difference is a 3,000 dollar entry in the previous
appropriation for One Main Plaza rent, which has been deleted in this current
supplemental appropriation. So the ... the net decrease in requested additional funds is
315,473 dollars.
NOTE:

Silence.
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CHAIR KANE: '" Okay.
MR. GINOZA: So, Mr. Chainnan, we have representatives of. ..Public Works, Solid Waste
Fund [sic} to provide additional infonnation or to address any questions that you or the
Committee Members may have.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Members ... first, Staff, if we can go take care of the air
conditioner? It just clicked off, so maybe we can go get that clicked back on for our
comfort.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: .. ,{inaudible} . ..
CHAIR KANE: .. . {laughter} . .. Leave it off?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: '" {inaudible} . ..
CHAIR KANE: It's a little too cold?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ., . {inaudible} . ..
CHAIR KANE: Oh, some people are cold?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: '" are cool.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: If, I don't think-COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --it's working.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, okay.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... {inaudible} . ..
CHAIR KANE: So we won't worry about that. Members .. .let's go
an orderly fashion as
much as possible. I'll recognize Ms. Anderson first. We do have the Department here to
provide us with some specifics on their request. Would you like to walk through that
first, Ms. Anderson, before we start posing questions?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, 'cause they may answer my questions.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. Exactly. So, we'll go ahead and provide you, Mr. Arakawa, with a
opportunity to provide your opening remarks to this request, and then we'll go with
Q and A once you complete your comments.
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MR. ARAKAWA: Mr. Chainnan, actually, I'll dispense with my opening remarks now. I'll
tum it over to Tracy Takamine who'll go over the, some of the reasons for the ...request.
And he'll be using the same grid fonn that Mr. Ginoza was referring to.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
NOTE:

Silence.

MR. TAKAMINE: . . . Mr. Chair, I guess I'll start on the top, Admin, under the
Administration...heading. Salaries and wages, we're asking for. . .increase of 40,018.
And basically that's pretty straightforward .
. . . We have a new Division Chief, which is myself. .. and apparently I make more
money than the individual that was before me. So .. .the difference there is about 25,644
dollars from the time I took this position until the end of the FY. We also hired a, we had
authorization for a new Civil Engineer III. It was funded for six months, however, we
came across an engineer that had landfill experience of about four to five years in a
design finn. And he was being picked up by the Water Department. I, I interviewed him
and, you know, convinced him that he needs to work for us. So we hired him two months
early-ALL: ... (laughter). ..

MR. TAKAMINE: --for about 14,374 dollars.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Goodjob .. .{laughter} . ..
MR. TAKAMINE: Yeah .. . {laughter} . .. And we're asking for about, an increase of 7,000
dollars for premium pay. We currently appropriated just 5,350 dollars, which is not
much. We're currently, all my staff, they are working overtime right now. I've asked
them not to put in for overtime pay due to the budget. And asked them they do do
overtime, to do CTO. So that's what everybody my office is doing now--is putting
for CTO versus, you know, getting paid. And that total is approximately 40,018 dollars.
CHAIR KANE: Excuse me, Mr. Takamine, just so you can be clear--CTO stands for what for
those who don't-MR. TAKAMINE: Not "CTO", compo time.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Okay. We have, we're on TV so the public is watching, so they
may not know what that is.
MR. TAKAMINE: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Go ahead, please.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... {inaudible} . ..
MR. TAKAMINE: And additional, that third line is basically office supplies. My office was
budgeted 13,000 dollars for the entire fiscal year. It included all my office supplies, any
rental. .. rental expenses, any, anything that I need to spend for in my office, and that's
totally insufficient so I'm asking for another 9,000 dollars. And what caused ... an
increase in cost also was our move to One Main Plaza, which wasn't budgeted. And it
kind of ate away at our... office ...revenue, not "revenue", but our office budget.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We'll stop in Administration. Members, questions? Mr. Hokama,
followed by Ms. Anderson, I think.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Very quickly, Chairman. Chairman, I, if! recall correctly ...
· .. when the topic of One Main Plaza, which, you know, our policy decision was made
by the Council whereby we chose to lease some space, I, I had, I had... be, believed,
'cause I, I thought I was working with Managing Director and whatnot that. .. we had
added funds to take into concern some of the moving, as well as construction
requirements needed to get those offices up to speed. And that we had budgeted, in
consultation with the Administration, monies to take care of that concern. So now that I
hear Mr. Takamine sharing that. .. you know ...he, you know, his budget was impacted
negatively.. .I'm wondering what happened to the monies that we had earmarked
specifically to take care of the needs of the movement to One Main Plaza. So, again .. .I
ask that question not expecting a response by Public Works this afternoon, but maybe as
a transmittal to the Managing Director's department for a response so that. .. before we
go into budget I can have a better understanding of whether or not what we were told,
what we budgeted, what we expected ...
· .. and how it will compare to what really happened and what is, what it was really used
for. So I would request that, please.
KANE: Thank you. Your request is noted. Staff?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And just one thing, Mr. Takamine. Real quick, I mean, pretty
much everything adds up.
· .. Premium pay, your projected cost versus against your budget, we looking at 11,000,
not 7--1 mean, again, I'm just, I'm not trying to be nitpicky, but I'm trying to understand
the numbers.
CHAIR KANE: ... Yeah, there's a 12,500 dollar difference-MR. TAKAMINE: Yeah--
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CHAIR KANE: --and you're showing 7150.
MR. TAKAMINE: Actually, it should be ... the projected cost should be 12,500.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MR. T AKAMINE: I believe.
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Which gives you the total of 17850.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
MR. TAKAMINE: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
Mr. Hokama?

Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Hokama.

Any other question,

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I. .. am happy for other Members.
CHAIR KANE: Okay-MR. TAKAMINE: .. .{inaudible} . ..
CHAIR KANE: --Ms. Anderson?
MR. TAKAMINE:
I think I can answer some of that questions that Councilman,
Member Hokama has on the rent.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MR. TAKAMINE:
KANE:

you want me to?
you can, please?

MR. T AKAMINE: From what I understand and what I was budgeted, in terms of, for the move,
for us it was ... an unplanned moved. We were given funds from the MD's office and
was allocated... basically, on a first-come, first-served basis if we came in. I did get
10,000 dollars out of the MDs office to make my move. And basically, I used that to do
interior. .. counters and desks ... that are, that are basically movable or, or portable. The
monies that I didn't get budgeted for were minor things like ... the parking we have to
pay, the valet, you know, we have to pay for certain, you know, incidental things that
didn't come with the 10,000. The 10,000 was only allowed for construction or, or, or
allowing us to make it, make the space .. .I don't want to say "livable", but usable. But--
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So you basically, you had a shell then, Mr. Takamine, you had to put
lll--

MR. TAKAMINE: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --the requirements of an operation to function.
MR. TAKAMINE: Right. And, and, and for example, I'm so limited on my budget, if you come
to my office, my door doesn't have a doorknob. Yeah, for some reason, they took out
three or four of the doorknobs, the previous tenant, and, and I haven't spent any money to
even put a doorknob. So you have, I, I have holes in my doors. But that's the kind of
expenses that I need additional funds for. And 13,000 dollars, you can't do much for an
entire year for a staff of nine people.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Ms. Anderson, any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah .
. . . Since we're, we've stopped on this one-CHAIR KANE: We're in Administration, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. And ... (cleared throat) . .. Mr. Takamine said that
his budget for supplies was 13,000, but it says 6575 here.
NOTE:

Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... Can you, should that be changed to 13,000?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson, the office supply, under the word "Budget", that's what was
currently budget. They've given us a projection of what it's gonna cost for the fiscal
year. And so the supplement is for the 9,000 difference. So they're asking for an
additional 9,000 dollars. And I'm sorry if!, I hope I'm trying to answer your question .
. . . That, that budget ... (end a/tape, start 4B) . .. that's the original budget amount for
the Fiscal Year '06. And-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I thought he just said he had 13,000.
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MR. TAKAMINE: Yeah, I can clarify that. My, that is a specific line item for office supplies.
And what I'm, I'm increasing. But my entire, I guess, I could clarify it, my entire office
budget, including all the difference categories--office supplies, gas ... transportation,
training--was 13,000. I'm only asking for this specific line item ... of, which it is was 67,
6575 to be increased to 15,575.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. And, and then I .. .I just wanna make a comment
that if. . .if he had to use ...his office supply funds ... for the move .. .I don't understand
why they're deleting 300,000 dollars that was earmarked for One Main Plaza.
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Mr. Takamine, are you prepared to respond or-MR. TAKAMINE: I think you're referring to the Budget Director's three, 3,000 dollars, not the
three, 300,000. We originally it had, in, in the original proposal, 3,000 dollars for One
Main Plaza. And the Budget Director stated it as "rental". But it was actually, when we
submitted it, it was for One Main Plaza recycle service. With all the County facilities
moving into One Main Plaza, there is no recycle ... of materials as there is in the County
building. So our recycle section took on them to coordinate recycle within the One Main
Plaza for all County facilities. Which we did have, or do have now. And that was an
additional 3,000 dollars per year to have one, Maui Disposal to come into the building
and remove the recycled materials. But. .. we, we took that out of this proposal as it was,
I guess, too small or too manini to even look at.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. I'm sorry. I thought I heard him say 300,000. He
did say delete Kihei Recycling Center, 378,450?
CHAIR KANE: ... Mr. Ginoza?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Is that the-MR. GINOZA: Kihei Recycling Center was 338,450-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: 38?
MR. GINOZA: Yes. 338,454 dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, I'm gonna ask a question about that later.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Any other questions in Admin, Members?
Disposal. Mr. Takamine, you have the floor.

Okay, moving on to Landfill

MR. TAKAMINE: '" Under Landfill Disposal, the first line item, Olowalu, basically, that's the
recycle center that has operated under contract with, by Maui Disposal. And basically, it,
we budgeted 264 ... but the ... bid price carne in higher, at 3.. .34624, for a difference of
82,000 dollars. It was basically our projected cost based on previous year's contract. But
it was too low.
CHAIR KANE: ... Okay, moving on.
MR. TAKAMINE: Molokai .. .it's a similar situation on Molokai. Our. .. scale house and
entrance facility is operated by, again, Maui Disposal. And the contract, originally we
budgeted 218, and their bid price carne in at 264. So, again, it was simply a... a higher
bid price versus our projected budget.
... EKO ... that one there .. .it's, again, a contract item. And basically what it is is we
pay EKO by the tonnage that goes through the scale house. And right now the tonnage is
going, corning in higher than what was anticipated or projected. So ... this is basically
strict. .. based strictly on what we've done so far and projecting it out to the end of the
year. We anticipating we're gonna be short by 100,000 dollars. But actually just before I
carne here, we looked at it again, and it might even be 175,000 dollars. I mean, that, so
we're getting a lot more tonnage in. And what we, what that one takes care of is
basically the, the FOG--you know the fats, oils, and grease; the ... green waste, sludge.
The sludge is a major one, too, that comes from the wastewater treatment plants and also
Pukalani ... sludge.
CHAIR KANE: ... Continue.
MR. TAKAMINE: '" You want me keep, keep moving on?
KANE: Yeah, continue, take

whole ... {inaudible} . ..

MR. TAKAMINE: Okay. Cover material, that line item has to do with the Central Maui
Landfill. We are looking at, to take us to the end of the year, another 325,000 dollars.
The difference, or the reason that occurred, was basically, as you all know, well,
hopefully you know, the landfill ... we had to extend the use of the landfill by going
higher. And what basically happened is by going higher, we had to fill in the slopes, the
side slopes. And when we did a major portion of our. .. projected ... tonnage to use for
cover material, it was based on more of a flat surface. And when we went to a higher
elevation, it's a lot harder to cover a slope versus a flat area. So we must, you know, I
think we went over on our... use of cover material just strictly based on the geography of
the old landfill. Additionally, we opened up the new landfill. So during a interim period,
we were actually covering, or working both, two landfills instead of one.
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NOTE:

Silence.

MR. TAKAMINE: ... Premium pay...we're, this was ... simple one. I mean, we budgeted
28,000. Our average over the past few years, if you look at our actual expenditures, have
averaged about 140 to 150 thousand dollars a year. We were given 28,000. But I'm
currently asking for another 250,000. And that's based on the operation of the new
landfill. We have expended up until December of 2005, approximately 152,000 dollars
already.
· .. And I'm gonna, I have a map here that I can go over later, and if you wanna know
exactly what the difference is in operation of the old landfill and the new landfill.
· .. Expansion positions ...to accommodate the new landfill operation, we're asking for
seven new positions. Three of 'em are equipment operators, two landfill attendants, and
two laborers. The funding, what you see there is basically anticipating that we get, say,
two months' worth of salary for the equipment operator and landfill attendant and, and a
laborer... three months for the ... remaining year. And that's based on those figures.
· . . Cardboard compactor. This equipment is needed at the new landfill facility. We
have, the Recycle Center up top currently has three bins out of the four that we use for
cardboard. That's a big, big recycle item. By having a compactor, we can cut down on
the space requirements there and also cut down on the hauling of the cardboard to the
Maui Disposal site, which is out in the Central baseyard.
· .. Any questions?
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, the floor is open for questions. Mr. Pontanilla, any questions
at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: ... As far as the seven new employees, how will that
new ... EP count affect your overtime, premium pay? Will it reduce it?
MR. TAKAMINE:
I get
seven that
requesting, it
reduce
It won't eliminate
We still anticipate that we will have overtime. With the seven additional personnel. . .I
nobody is sick, if
will have what we bare, what we need ... to operate if no, again,
nobody goes on vacation. Now, you know, that never happens, so in anticipating of any
of that happening, we are gonna be running at least. .. minimum overtime. But not at the
amount that we're currently doing. Nowhere near that.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So the new, the seven employees that is being requested,
the ... efficiency of the .. .I guess operating the landfill would be .. . (laughter). .. much
better than what we're doing today .. .I'm assuming that.
MR. TAKAMINE: If, if you look at that, I passed out a map. I can, I'll go over it real quick.
The old, the old landfill, first of all. .. required less operators because ... people, the
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public drove right onto the landfill, went to a certain portion of the landfill and dumped
their trash, and then left. This new landfill requires more, it's a more labor-intensive
landfill because it is, has an entrance facility. And if you look at that map, if you've
never been out there, individual, the homeowner comes in.. .I need an attendant at the
top portion for the recycle center. . .if you have recycle--cardboard, glass, plastics, paper.
... And eventually, we'll have a redemption center. We don't have one there right now.
Eventually we will. And metals, eventually. And it continues on around the tum, passes
the scale house. I have a, in that scale house I need a cashier. And then goes on to the
refuse off-loading site where I need an attendant and one operator to operate those
roll-on, roll-off bins which we need to be unloading ... on weekends, it's almost
continuously. You, you, hook one up, take it to the landfill ... throw the trash away, come
back, and it's a continuous because those bins are not very big. And then on the landfill
itself, you're looking at the upper right-hand comer. I need two dozer operators, a
compactor, and an operator for a water truck loader and dump truck. All these operators
you see there ...
. . . is basically one shift. The landfill, if, ifit's open line ... 6 to 4. That's a ten-hour day.
That means if I have one shift... they're working overtime, first of all. So I need two
shifts or two crews to cover a ten-hour work day to allow them to have lunch, to give
them a break. . .in order to be covered continue, you know, continuously. 'Cause I can't
pull a attendant off or a equipment operator off even for an hour to go eat lunch when all
those commercial trucks are coming in. So we need to continually operate. And if we're
operating seven days a week. .. under the old schedule ... that seven people I asked for
basically doubles my staff. 'Cause I, currently, I have five operators ... four attendants,
and one working supervisor to operate this whole landfill. So I'm averaging about 450
hours a pay period right now just to keep the landfill open... as it is now. And right now
we're on reduced hours.
We went to Monday, Wednesday, Friday 6 to
4 ... Tuesday... Tuesday, Thursday, Saturday, Sunday 7 to 2:30. And the old hours, I
believe it was Monday through Friday 6 to 4; Saturday, Sunday was the 7 to 2:30 or
somewhere around there. So we'll make it more efficient, but it also just gives me what I
need to operate this landfill the way it needs to be operated. And if I don't have the
operators, that's what got us into trouble with the DOH on an old landfill. Our operators
were working ... 12 hours a day, some of these guys were working 12 hours a day ... and I
had one individual work for 57 days straight with no days off. I had an attendant working
75 days with no days off. And they worked from before the sun comes up and they're
out there on that hill 'til after the sun goes down with no lights. So we violated, you
know, not covering it; we violated not picking up the litter. Basically, we were just
maintaining the landfill just to keep the public from ... giving them the convenience to
come in during those hours. So by, by doing that, we, we had some violations. And we
needed to correct those violations. We've done that now with the new landfill. And to
maintain that, I'm asking for these positions to be filled so that can do it correctly and
also give these individuals that work for me a quality of life that they need. Because right
now ... because they're willing to work the overtime, I can open this landfill. If they
didn't wanna work this overtime ...we'd be in trouble. And I have, I've had to actually
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request through Milton ... assistance from the Highways Division, and I've also pulled it
off of my collection sites, so I have individuals that willing to work overtime. And we've
also done some temp agency hires.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. So this ... new requirement, then, will open
the landfill seven days a week. Uh .. .I can understand that on the weekends that's, you
know, some of the problems are occurring in regards to high overtime usage .
. . . Yeah, in order for you to work that particular landfill .. .I can see the, the manpower
requirements increase. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Johnson, followed by Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Traci, thank you very much for going through this. One of
my concerns, of course, is .. .like with the EKO area. That's kind of shocking that we're
looking at that kind of green waste. Is there any clue as to where, you know, these, these
materials are coming in? Because we seem so .. .(laughter) . .. it's such a big increase.
And even if you're looking at maybe like as much as 175,000 more ... what do you
attribute, you know, this big increase? Are people just. .. cutting more green, you know,
cutting more trees down? That, I know they're doing. But ...
MR. T AKAMINE: I don't have a, a breakdown of the, the percentages, but actually they, that
contract when you look at the, the percentage between the green waste and the sludge-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. TAKAMINE: --sludge is the, the one that's bringing in the, the money.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. TAKAMINE: Wastewater pays us. .
this contract, they, they account
almost one,
over a million dollars of this contract. So the green waste, although the tonnage might go
up, it doesn't impact it as much as if the, say the sludge went up coming from
wastewater.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So if you're asking us for, let's say, 100,000 dollars, what
you're also saying, though, is that your revenue projections, because you're taking in
more material--and let's say it is sludge--that your revenue projections would also be
increasing?
MR. TAKAMINE: ... If, if Wastewater...we, and we need to look at that, I guess, Wastewater
projects how much tonnage they will be providing to us for the coming year. And they,
they budget for that amount also. And it's transferred to us. So if their tonnage went up
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and they didn't budget enough, then, then we, we getting a shortfall from their side for
revenue.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. 'Cause that's something I really would like to take a
look at. So if you can give us more information at some point, even in, during budget.
And then the other thing that I, I would like to ask you is because these people are
working such long hours and because there's also, also the potential for burnout, are you
looking at any increase in your workmen's compensation type claims? Are you... for
illness, injury, or are you running at full employment and these people are all performing
up to ... standards?
MR. TAKAMINE: Since I took over the Division in August, I, we actually had one operator that
was on workers' compo And I, I don't recall how long he was gone, but he has come
back. Db... and I don't have anybody else right now. Everybody that I know ... for the
landfill .. .is working now.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So you're fully staffed and you have no vacancies.
MR. TAKAMINE: I do have some vacancies in the landfill attendant. I think I have two.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
your ... your premIUm pay.

Okay.

But that wouldn't help significantly to reduce

MR. TAKAMINE: ... Well, I would still have to, I'm still, actually although I have two
vacancies, I am, like I mentioned before, I have two temporary hires-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh.
MR. TAKAMINE: --filling those vacancies or I'm bringing in ... the limited appointments. So
my premium pay, I'm still paying out, I guess, paying that.
real interested,
in
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, 'cause you know, I, I would
light of this to look at what we could do in budget if you do need these additional
pOSItIons.
But looking at bringing down the premium pay and having some
... (laughter) . .. you know, having these people have some kind ofa life .
. . . So, anyway, that's fine, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. And real quickly I'll go down my, my list.
Regarding Olowalu and Molokai, Mr. Takamine ... you know, we're looking at. .. gee,
what, 25 percent increase, you know, we looking about, what, a 470-plus thousand dollar
budget program, and now we're looking at moving it up to ... close to what, 600, little
over 600,000 dollars.
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. . . You mention that it is served by private contracts. Db ... are we close to a point
where ... the Division may wanna consider whether or not to convert this to a total
County operation.. .instead of continuing private contracts to ...to take care of Olowalu
and Molokai?
MR. TAKAMINE: Well, on Molokai, actually it's not a total private operation. They, they just
operate the scale house and the recycle portion of it. We, we operate the landfill itself.
We have operators-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah, no, I understand that. But the, the portion that the
private contractors are providing the service ...have we reached the point where
comparatively same job descriptions, rate of pay and everything makes sense for us
to ... move away from the private contract and make it a total County operation?
MR. TAKAMINE: I, I haven't had time to even approach that thought or look at that and do an
analysis on that. So I wouldn't be able to comment on that at this time.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Maybe ... before the upcoming budget presentations of your
Division, you, you might have an opportunity to see if it makes sense for us to look
another option, Mr. Takamine. You know, that I would appreciate. Under... EKO .. .I
heard what you response to Ms. Johnson. Is ...this money that you're asking, this
additional 100,000, is this ... a portion also going to Maui ... Maui Biodiesel because of
their, you know, they're a subcontractor of EKO, if I understand right. And they take
care the, the ... the FOG portion that they can convert to biodiesel. And so is this also
part of Biodiesel's compensation for the ... service they provide us as a, with alternative
fuel choices?
MR. TAKAMINE: The entire contract. . .like you mentioned, it is because Biodiesel has sub,
subcontractor to ... EKO, EKO.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. So this is about more for buy, eventually my, Maui Biodiesel
or this is ... strictly just EKO's?
MR. TAKAMINE: The 100,000?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, the 100,000.
MR. TAKAMINE: Uh .. .I don't know. I don't know what, I cannot give you specifics of where
this 100,000, why, why, what particular area has gone up. I don't have that ... (inaudible
due to interruptionJ-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: This is a request by EKO to your Division, Mr. Takamine?
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MR. TAKAMINE: This is not a request by EKO, but it's based on the ... contract and our
projected payout so far, and just doing a, basically a straight line graph showing what
we've done on average per month and what we need to the end ofthe year.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay. My other question was on ... premium pay. You've
looked at all your op, operational adjustments that you could institute. And that, and,
and after your analysis and, and implementation of some of your options ...we still
looking at another quarter-million dollars needed for overtime?
NOTE:

Silence.

MR. TAKAMINE: ... Yes. That's just strictly based on, on, what we've, again, spent so far.
We've tried to, well, I have tried to minimize the landfill hours-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. TAKAMINE: --to cut back on both our staffing and the expenditures. But as you know,
we're back up to seven days. And in order to operate, that's what we need.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Understood. Understood. And, and I'm just asking to see if the,
your, your, you and your Division has gone through a ...
. . . analysis of, you know, trying to see if there's other ways to get the efficiencies and
minimize the additional financial requirements.
MR. TAKAMINE: Yes, we have. We, we've gone through and looked at what we need to do in
order to operate safely. And this is the minimum we need right now.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And, again, we're relying on you to give us ... this accurate
information, Mr. Takamine. My, my question on the expansion... you know, as I shared,
you know, we're pretty much in the third quarter, excuse me, the half. .. first-half of the
third quarter ... {laughter} . .. of a fiscal year.
this should go out, by the time Council gives its, since it's a ordinance, two
third quarter. So ... {inaudible} . ..
readings ...we looking at the end of
quarter. And my understanding from comments not only from your Department, but
from some other Departments about how things may not have ... how things are not
moving as smoothly in DPS, Department of Personnel Services. How realistic ... are you
looking at being able to get positions filled this fiscal year, by June 30th ?
... Because I have, I don't, I am, I'm open to authorizing positions. But if you're not
gonna fill it. .. not you specifically .. .{laughter} . .. Mister .. . {laughter} . .. but if the
County doesn't fill it, our Departments that need to do what they need to do ... does not
fill it, then should we just wait for the new budget and deal with it on a year long basis so
that--because I think one question I asked early in a different committee was whether or

- 97 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

January 31, 2006

not it was a manning assessment done. And I believe the Department came back that
there was some revisions that the current collective bargaining agent. .. understanding is
we cannot transfer within Divisions either. .. of, of the same Department?
MR. TAKAMINE: Correct. That was a Solid, that was the UPW agreement with, for the
automated contract where you, the refuse collector cannot, will not be transferred out of
the Refuse section within the Division.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But you still able to borrow those persons for your Division?
MR. TAKAMINE: When 1-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: .. .(inaudible). ..
MR. TAKAMINE: When I borrowed-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... assigned to another, you still can temporarily reassign?
MR. TAKAMINE: ... I don't think we can temporarily reassign. I can ask if they can, if
they're willing to voluntarily transfer over or do overtime. And I've, that's what I'm
currently doing with, with some of those personnel--we're putting them on overtime.
Because they have this uku pau contract, as you all know-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right. Right.
MR. TAKAMINE: --it's very specific on how we can work them.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
MR. TAKAMINE: So anything over their regular routes, I need to pay overtime. So I do have
one or two of these collectors and equipment operators working at
landfill on
overtime.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... Okay. 'Cause I'm sure you've looked at redescribing jobs and
other personnel options to try and take care of, you know, 'cause, you know, I, I, I can
agree--I don't wish to have ...
. . . those efficiencies from the collection program. I would hope that, you know, the
Union would have been open ... still being employed with the County, but
.. .(laughter) . .. you know, actually where we need help now is Landfill Division... and
work with us to see how we can continue to provide full-time employment for their
members, our employees but the program is shifting, we getting away from the uku pau
gang collection type to efficient automotive collection.
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MR. TAKAMINE: If I can comment on that? Although the landfill is a priority, the--on the
collection side... uh... my supervisor is doing an excellent job in keeping these
employees actively engaged in work. And one of the big issues right now, as you all
know, is the white goods that accumulating on the sides of roads. And that's just a big an
issue as continuing to maintain the landfill. He's utilizing personnel that are being freed
up from automation to run this program--which is really an unofficial program. And it's,
you know, we, we're trying to do a, a job and a service to the community, but it's very
hard when, when again it's not, not an official program.
. . . So basically what I'm getting at is we're already utilizing these ... these people and
they're not, not, they're not basically sitting around. And I can't really use them at the
landfill because they're, they're doing a service that we need, the County needs-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Under the collection-MR. TAKAMINE: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --division.
MR. TAKAMINE: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
MR. TAKAMINE: And, and they're still in the same, you know, field, basically.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, and I, and I appreciate you being able to ... explain that
clearly... clearly for all of us. But getting back to the expansions, they are currently no
warm bodies in those positions, even under emergency hire or some kind of temporary
assignment. Do you, you don't have those seven people ... yet.
MR. TAKAMINE: I don't have any authorization to, to get the seven people. I do have my
vacancies I've filled with temp agency hires.
also converted ... (inaudible). .. temp
agency hires, and I've done limited hires on other positions.
terms of these seven that
you mention in terms of time frame to hiring-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
MR. TAKAMINE: --I agree with you that it might be unrealistic to get somebody in for
equipment operators. It, we're very hard, it's very hard to get equipment operators
because they require CDL licenses. The construction industry is in, in .. .in a booming
industry right now. People are actually leaving the County to make more money working
with construction industries. That's why 1 only asked for two months for the equipment
operator and I'm, I'm crossing my fingers that if this is approved, I can get an equipment
operator list by May. Same with the landfill attendant because that requires a
cert... passing test and being qualified. The laborers, I, I may.. .three months based on
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the fact that I can pick anybody off of the street, I, I believe, without qualifying them. So
long as they're on the list, we can get laborers in. And there are people out there that are
willing to work--because the temp agency had, they we're working with, has individuals
and we've gotten them... as soon as we ask for 'em. So they're out there on the laborer
side. It's very hard, might be--not "very hard", but it might be limited pool for the
equipment operators and landfill attendants. But if I don't get the two months and the
three months and if I do get that individual, I won't get the funding. That's why I'm
asking for it. I'm crossing my fingers that I do get it and I'm funded for it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Are, are you aware from, through DPS that there's, you have, a
qualified list for you to work from currently or are they gonna need to go through their
whole process to give you a qualified list of potential employees?
MR. TAKAMINE: Landfill attendants, there's a qualified list.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, good.
MR. TAKAMINE: Equipment operators, I believe the procedure they'd have to, they'd have to
set up testing ... qualification test. I'm not exactly sure. It might be a little hard, a bit
harder on the equipment operator side of the house.
NOTE:

Silence.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: '" Okay. Thank you for your responses. I appreciate. Thank you,
Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Ginoza, you're recognized.
MR. GINOZA: Yes, Mr. Chair. I, I'd like to address Mr. Hokama's ... question a little bit. In
respect to, yes, we are close to the end of the fiscal year, but if the positions, the
counts are approved prior to the end of the year, the process of trying to get qualified
applicants would be hastened in, in the time frame. So I guess, you know, the, the
urgency is to, to hire them if,
you deem them appropriate, that if we can start the
process quicker, I think they can satisfy their requirements a little quicker. Because
you start July 1S\ that's when the ... the processing starts because a lot of the, well, the
position starts at the Budget Office. And if we have no EP positions, we don't approve
any manpower requests. So, you know, it, it's kind of limiting in that fashion--that the
process of getting the thing moving ...would be quicker if we, we have it earlier. I, I
understand... Mr. Hokama's concern that we're close to the end of the year, so why not
wait, but that's just one ... aspect that I'd like to point out.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
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CHAIR KANE: --comments?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And, and, and thank you. I appreciate Mr. Ginoza's additional
comment to the question I posed to Mr. Takamine. Again, though, yeah, for us to make
the best decisions ... you know, that's why we ask about manning ...requirements,
manning analysis of the whole Department. Because, you know, off the bat. .. you know,
I'm willing to give you the, the position through a limited term appointment and have the
regular budget process determine whether or not we're really convinced this is the right
way to go, and then make it permanent positions. And, again, I bring up knowing that
other Departments are having difficulty filling positions. You know, one was asked
about Parks Department. You know? Year ago we said, fine, we're gonna support
Aquatics in this area. We were told today, still yet unfilled position ... (end a/tape, start
5A) . .. we understand there's other factors in... that impact Mr. Takamine and ... and the
Solid Waste Program that's out of his control. And, you know, I'm just trying to be real
knowing that how ... some things mayor may not occur within Personnel Services. We
can be fully supportive, give you all the money and positions, but at the end of June 30,
you still tell us, oh, we still have seven vacancies.
MR. GINOZA: So can I provide just one more comment ... (laughter) . .. And I recognize that,
and I, and I'm not really... giving any commitment that positions will be filled, but I
think the opportunity to find someone gets greater if you .. .if you have a... a longer open
period to look for that person. And, yes, I. .. think.. .I think the Committee needs to be
convinced that these are permanent positions and these are needed and required positions.
Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Ginoza.
MR. TAKAMINE: Mr. Chair, can I comment, too, on that?
CHAIR KANE: Sure. A final comment before we move on with some other questions.
MR. TAKAMINE: Considering limited. .
[sic] position, I think it would be hard for us to
recruit an equipment operator it's a limited term because they, I don't think they would
commit if it, it would ... not guarantee it's gonna be a permanent position and give up
what they have now.
NOTE:

Silence.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... And, Chairman, the reason I bring that up is because we recently
got a report from DPS of positions that the County has eliminated. Okay? So my thing
is ...has, has DPS worked with the Public Works Department, the specific ... Solid Waste
Division and see whether or not they can redescribe vacant positions or whatnot, but
utilize what is already authorized as part of our overall position count? Redescribe a job,
position... transfer a position.. .instead of just creating positions. I would hope that we
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would look at the gamut of personnel options that we, as Members, are fully aware
are ... capable for the Administration to exercise, including emergency hiring .
. . . And that's all I'm asking--is ... have we done ... (laughter) . .. this whole thing and
looked at it. . .in a much more, what I would consider reasonable picture than just
focusing on just one, one specific aspect--how to convince us to fund the request.
... That's all I'm asking, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Member Tavares, thank you for your patience.
You're recognized.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, thank you. I'm just wondering when did the need for
these seven positions arise. Is it something different about the landfill that wasn't
anticipated so it's not presently in the .. .'06 Budget? I mean, know ... Mr. Takamine is,
is new to the position and I can't imagine the challenges you've had, but. .. you
know ...this was not that I can recall a request from .. .last year.
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Tavares, that's ... you bring up a good point. The additional
positions, well, I think first of all, let me back up a bit. First of all. .. the Central Maui
Landfill was ...to me, they, they were always short on positions.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Db-huh.
MR. ARAKAWA: And I think you can see that in the overtime that we, we have asked for in
the past. There have been some others, you know, that. .. settlement issues that we had to
deal with... with the Department of Health. And so the, the problems kinda pointed to,
among other things, short staff. To exacerbate those issues ...we've had to deal with the
closure of Phase I and II ...which means we've had to allocate staff for, you know,
placing the appropriate fill material there and compacting it and, you know, preparing the
working phase there. In addition, we've had to .. .lay down the fluff material at Phase
IV-A, which required staff to, to do the work there. And then once that's done, we're
gonna have to ... have another layer on top the, of the regular trash, once, you know,
Phase I and II were closed. And Tracy has also mentioned that with the entrance facility
now ...there are additional staffing that would be needed there to monitor the comings
and goings of residential self-haulers-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Db-huh.
MR. ARAKAWA: --the cashiers that would be needed to weigh the trucks, and also having a
recycling center there as well ...to provide some additional functions. So it's a variety of
things. And then, so I think the staffing has really been exacerbated with the, you know,
opening and closing of. .. the phases of the landfill and the new entrance facility.
But. .. you know, in terms of... you know, informing the Council, you're correct, I mean,
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you know, we should have, we should have brought this up earlier. And I apologize for
that.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No, I'm just. . .I just was wondering 'cause I'm sure that
there, there a lots of requests that come in that don't quite make it to the budget because
priorities change or whatever. The other comment I have, and I'm glad Mr. Hokama
brought that up, about the notices we've been getting on positions that are being
abolished. And I hope there's somebody.. .in our side, that's keeping track of these
because that should be reducing EPs along the way. Now, I think this is, this seems like
this is a new ... direction--and I don't know who's driving this direction regarding
positions--but before it was you took a position and redescribed it to something else,
which... sometimes I didn't like because, you know, you're taking one position here,
redescribing it to something over here that's not even related, it's different than
describing a Water Safety Officer I to a Water Safety Officer II. But when you take a
Clerk over here and redescribe it to ... you know, a Division Chief or an Engineer, that's
like a far stretch for me. So I think that while we look at if this is a new policy--and I
guess we'll ask Personnel if this is the policy or not--and that I think this more clearly
reflects what the personnel needs are going in, rather than us getting an after-the-fact
report that, oh, this position was redescribed. And we go through it so quickly during
budget that there aren't those questions asked. And... you know, I think it is a policy
shift, but I, would be nice if we heard from either the Administration or from Personnel
that it is that. And hopefully somebody in our Staff is keeping track of these abolished
positions so we can balance it out with the, with the budget that comes next year to make
sure those are reflected in the EP counts. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Any further questions in this area, Members? Chair
only has one--if you can touch base, Mr. Takamine, on the cardboard compactor. I know
that there's ...we've had this discussion, but I'd like you to maybe highlight some, a
component of this... the compactor is a.. .is a piece of equipment that needs to be
ordered and it takes some time to, to be ... put into operation. And so having it here
versus having it
a Fiscal Year '07 request was, I think, a point of discussion that we
had prior to this meeting. So
like you to highlight that component.
MR. T AKAMINE: Yes, the compactor, as I mentioned, is used for the recycle portion, up top on
the landfill. We currently have three bins because of the quantity that cardboard is,
comes in. It's basically the biggest item that comes into the landfill, and we trying to it
out of the landfill. We currently have three open-top bins. We wanna put--and, and there
is a... design to put a... compactor there. It's wired, actually. There's, there's, there's a
wiring ... an outlet there to actually plug it in, basically. So we're proposing to purchase
a compactor. The time frame that it takes to get a compactor, it's like any big piece of
equipment--once we get it approved, it'd probably take a year before we see this
equipment on site. That's why we're proposing to do it now versus waiting to the FY '07
Budget which will then push it back into probably '08 some time.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any other questions in this area? Mr. Hokama.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So .. .I understand what you just shared with us, Mr. Takamine .
. . . Wouldn't that, don't you have ...potential consideration, Mr. Ginoza, on the,
the ... equipment bond ... that Council has ... supported for the current year?
... I know, 160,000, I would think would qualify for equipment bond consideration that
we already approved that you could say, you know, our very last priority, sorry... make
it, we're gonna replace and put compactor. .. within the consideration for that equipment
bond?
MR. GINOZA: Yes, we haven't reached that point yet .. .(laughter) . .. So we, we could, but ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... I'm assuming, you know, it has a reasonable lifespan that it
would-MR. GINOZA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --make sense that under equipment bond would be a, a reasonable
consideration, Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: Yeah. 'Cause any time there's a equipment bond, you know, what I'd like to
see personally is, you know, a long life to that equipment because it is funded over a long
period of time. So you would expect that the equipment to last between 15 and 20 years.
I mean, then that would make sense in terms of a equipment bond because your bond is
paid over that period.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right. And, and again, I, you know, I just ask that, you know, we
might wanna, and then now... and quickly before I relinquish the floor, and I know
Ms. Tavares ...has a question...would this be, eventually, a part of the diversion material
recycle facility? Or this would be in addition to what the ... permitted MRF would be
doing as far as diverting things from entering the landfill?
MR. GINOZA: I have to defer to ...Mr. Takamine.
MR. TAKAMINE: Yes, actually, this would still be there. There, the MRF, if. . .if and when
it's completed would be the processing center. So all these sites that are out there now
would, wouldn't change. You would still have these drop-off points, this container
would be then hauled to the MRF and emptied at the MRF and then sorted and bale'd.
So it would be a...permanent, permanent facility. It ...wouldn't be ... deleted once the
MRF is ... constructed.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So, so real fast, Chairman, and I'm, I apologize. There is no
intention for the MRF ... to be a separation program? It's, accept, you, the plan is to
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accept what has already been separated at the home-front or office-front and that what the
collection is just doing is collection, period.
MR. TAKAMINE: The, the current plan was to have a MRF that would take that. But you'd
still have a sort line because you have contaminated material in there that have to be
taken out. Eventually-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... (inaudible) . .. broken up in, between plastics and cardboards
and ...
MR. TAKAMINE: From-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: .. ' (inaudible). ..
MR. TAKAMINE: --what I understand, they would bring in, say, they'd be doing cardboard
right now, they'd bring in all the cardboard bins, drop it off on the sort line, and then in
that cardboard, if people have thrown glass, they've thrown plastic, need to be taken out.
Then they might bring in the plastic containers and throw it on a sort line. And then they
would have to take out cans that are, that mixed in there. Eventually, the plan was or is to
go to, say, curbside recycling. And if it's a... a single-stream, where people throw all
their glass, cans, paper products in one container... now when that comes to the MRF,
we'd have to upgrade that MRF to accommodate that type of sort line. 'Cause now
you're talking about taking metals, taking out plastics that are all combined. And, and it
would eventually... we, we'd have to come back to you for an upgrade of the facility to
accommodate that type of material. So we're talking, you know, two different type of
programs.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Programs.
MR. TAKAMINE: Programs, right.
HOKAMA: Okay. And, and
just. . .I guess we'll get into it
comments.

you for
the regular budget,

I

for your

CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Additional comments, Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.
CHAIR KANE: Any additional questions in this area, Members?
... The other, and only, the other final question I have is I know that the comments
earlier regarding wastewater... uh ... regarding the increased sludge. Is Wastewater
gonna reimburse Solid Waste ... for this increased sludge?
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MR. TAKAMINE: Again, I haven't looked at it. But if there is a large increase based on what
was budgeted, we, we probably would, might go back to Wastewater and ask them to,
to .. .in, increase their transfer funds, I would assume. Well, I know we've done that once
before ...when Solid Waste came out on the short end ofthe ... uh ... funding.
CHAIR KANE: So we're assuming at this point that you folks aren't prepared to, to look at that
as a reduction of this request?
MR. TAKAMINE: That's correct. I, I haven't, like I said, I haven't looked at it. I guess I
would need to go back and look at where it came from, the shortage.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So the point would be, in this case, if you're not prepared now, then to
look at so '07 comes forward in your projections for your budgets, Mr. Ginoza, yeah?
This is an area that can be looked at.
MR. GINOZA: Yes, I've noted that.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you-MR. GINOZA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: --very much. Okay, Members, thank you for your patience. We're moving on
to Refuse Collection. And we're almost there, Members, so ... the light is at the end of
the tunnel.
MR. TAKAMINE: And the Refuse Collection, basically, it's ...just fuel increase. We've
looked at the ... first quarter reports. We, we had, I guess, some issues of getting reports
on a quarterly... monthly, monthly updates. And we've just recently, on November, got
the quarterly reports. And just based on that, in the increase in fuel prices ... for the first
one, Makawao, we, we've in, we've seen an increase and we project to about 8,000
dollars short. Just, again, based on a straight line average monthly usage. The one
Lahaina, the difference there being so large is because we budgeted 7,000 last year, and
apparently there was an error. The actual expenditures
.. '05 was 17,000.
for
some reason, for '06, it was budgeted 7. So we're already 10,000 short on what was
actually expended in ... '05. And then, again, we straight lined it and ... and anticipate a
shortfall of 20,000.
CHAIR KANE: Members, any questions in Refuse Collection fuel for Makawao and Lahaina?
... Okay, let's move on. Diversion?
MR. TAKAMINE: In Diversion Program, our drop box hauling is ... straightforward. Our
contract currently is budgeted for 301. It came in 357. This contract is a Maui Disposal
Contract that, they take care of all our drop box, recycle centers, hauling all
the ...recyclable materials, and running the redemption centers.
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... Under County Grant Subsidy, we were budgeted 25,000. And we currently have
61,300 in expenditures and commitments. And basically, that is the Compu-Swap and
Community Work Day, I believe.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, questions .. .in this area?
... Mr. Hokama?

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: One, one, just one quick one. I know we provided specific funding
for Community Work Day. So what in addition are they providing the County that under
County grant subsidy there, there's this need for the increase?
NOTE:

Silence.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... Unless Staff can tell me that we didn't provide specific funding
for Community Work Day. I, I thought. .. 1 thought we did.
NOTE:

Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: .. .(inaudible} ...
MR. TAKAMINE: For, for us, the Community Work Day, they run the Compu-Swap. They're,
basically they man it, the vol. .. they provide the volunteers, they coordinate the shipping,
and we reimburse them for those expenses. Current, currently, the shipping alone is
running about 17,000 dollars. We're doing four containers. Four containers last year,
and this just, this past weekend, we're probably at four containers or more. I mean, it's a
very.. .it's a growing program. And it's getting to be very costly to operate. And we, so
we projected so much tonnage. And, and we're going over that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And just one, one ... quick last question, you know, Mr. Takamine.
The containers, I assume, are, are Matson type of container, or Sealand container. Since
recognized that does good
Community Work Day is a nonprofit entity that we've
work for your community... are they utilizing, are you aware, or can you help
them-- 'cause my understanding, Matson provides a free container to nonprofit
organizations that help provide environmental cleanup services. And so if Matson
continues to provide that service back to the Maui community.. .I think there can be
some savings of not paying the things that Matson as a corporate citizen has offered as
their part to maybe ... fight the war against litter and ... and... waste. So I just ask that
you might wanna follow up on that, please.
MR. TAKAMINE: Yeah, I'm not aware of that. I'll follow up with my staff.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Any additional questions in this area of Diversion?
... And the only question, and unfortunately Mr. Young, apparently, had to leave ... for
the evening. I guess this is where my question would come down, and I don't know if,
Mr. Ginoza, you're prepared to adequately respond. And if not, we'll figure out how to
get a response in writing. Under the drop box hauling, if you recall under the history of
the MRF, that the 4 dollar surcharge or. .. recycling surcharge on commercial
haulers ... this was something that was established in Fiscal Year '04, Members-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: --if you recall.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's right.
CHAIR KANE: And it was specifically highlighted that it was gonna be used for sole purposes
in the Diversion Program. Included in that was hauling for recycling drop boxes. That's
the first item that was highlighted in that description three years ago. Or almost three
years ago. So this is where I would ask. .. does Administration account for that revenue
from that 4 dollar recycling... surcharge? And wouldn't this be an area where that
monies can be applied directly to this instead of asking for transfer that you can have that
money applied directly to what it was intended to be used for, which was drop box
hauling?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: '" And I guess the quest, the other question is posed for Mr. Young.. .is the
accounting of that. 'Cause apparently we, there isn't an accounting of that 4 dollar
surcharge, based on our preliminary questions and responses. So we'll, we'll get a
formal written question, Members, of that. Because I think the public wants to know
where that 4 dollars for the past three years has been going and how it's been utilized.
Mr. Ginoza, are you prepared to respond?
MR. GINOZA: Uh .. .I know only about the discussions we had. Mr. Chair, we ...what I
understand is they do not presently account for that revenue. And we ...we've asked
Finance to establish procedures in conjunction with Public Works to segregate those
collections at the point of collections so they can separate the revenues from
the... regular landfill collections. And we, we do have tonnage information with respect
to the ... recycles. So, you know, one source of.. .information for estimating the revenue
would be from the Public Works tonnage information on the re, recycling
surcharge ... and applying the 4 dollars per ton.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. Okay. Members, Chair doesn't have any further questions. That was
the only one in that area. Any final questions? Member Anderson?
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I just wanted to follow up on the
deletion of the 338,000 for the Kihei Recycling Center. Would it be safe to assume that
you will be bringing forward funds for that in this upcoming budget?
MR. TAKAMINE: That is correct. We, we have put it in as a CIP project for FY '07.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions, final comments?
· .. Hearing none, the Chair is prepared to move forward with a recommendation.
· .. Members, it is your Chair's recommendation that we move forward with the revised
proposed ordinance with the ...with the stated movements of monies, including the EP
counts.
· .. The Chair is, based on some of the discussion, and I'll highlight a couple of 'em, one,
the cardboard compactor and the ...the bond, equipment bond question. I think that's
something that's worth looking into. And so we'll just do a little bit more inquiry with
the Administration through Mr. Ginoza, look at that. Also, the drop box hauling
component, the 56,000. So there's a couple of hundred, couple of hundred thousand
dollars there. And I note these items, although in the recommendation, I'm asking for
your con, favorable consideration to move forward, that at first reading there may be an
opportunity for some adjustment that I'll ask the body to consider once we get to that
point. And if there's none, then we'll, we'll obviously make some note of that we've
reached the point where we're not gonna make that. .. recommendation. So with that,
Members, it would be a recommendation to move forward with the revised
proposed ... bill. And let me just make sure that I'm asking the, the correct thing.
Moving forward with the revised proposed ordinance, making the amendment of the
fiscal year budget, and, Members, also the certification, which I believe is attached.
Mr. Taguchi, that's attached to that, the revised certification... certified--I'm sorry, is it
revised, the certification?
MR. TAGUCHI: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Yes. So certify.. .in the, the revised certification, as well as filing of the
County Communication 06-7.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So moved, Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR KANE: It's been moved and seconded by Members Hokama and Tavares. We're in
discussion. Mr. Hokama?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... I wish we didn't have to do this, Chairman. But, you know,
we .. .it's understandable. We talked about public health and safety at the landfill.
Uh...we're talking about. .. you know, our program that must operate every day that we
can to, you know, provide the service as well as maintain a healthy... situation not only
from a financial standpoint, but regarding the environment and the need of our County to
provide the service as efficiently as we can. I have my concerns, still yet, regarding the
overall request, but I'm happy to move it forward to Council for a final vote on this
matter, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama.
Ms. Johnson?

Additional. .. discussion

Ill,

on this item?

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I just wanna thank the Department, really, and ... your
Staff, too, for helping to put this together and the revised bill. Because sometimes it's
hard for. .. those of us that are not familiar with all the terminology .. .(laughter) . .. and
all the changes. But I also think, Mr. Chair, that it points out, really, the tremendous
pressure that we are under as a community with regard to impacts of visitors as well as
our local residents and the new residents and all the construction that is going on.
Because the waste stream, it has to go somewhere. So these are things that I think we
should all be focusing on and look at the big picture. And I'm hoping that the General
Plan Advisory Committee takes a really good look at numbers like this so that they also
understand that the data they have going in may be changing this rapidly ... (laughter) . ..
as we're getting these changes from you. So if it changes from month to month--and
particularly with regard to fuel, things that we have no control over--I think it's really
important to be cognizant of that. And I certainly don't blame you for these increases
because you have no control over these outside forces. Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Member Johnson. Any additional discussion? Members, just a, oh,
I'm sorry. Ms Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, I just wanna...thank Mr. Takamine for. .. stepping
into this position and taking control and trying to come forward with some
immediate ...relief for the workers that are out at the landfill right now. Because, you
know, working overtime ... on the one hand, it can be great because you're gonna bring
home some extra money. But on the other hand ... you're putting yourself, I think, at risk
when you work overtime too much, especially in a position like that. Because .. .1
consider it a high-risk job. So I appreciate that, and I'm happy to support it.
... Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Any additional comments?
... Hearing none, Members, the Chair's comments is to, first and foremost thank ... both
the Budget Director and the Public Works Director, as well as with Mr. Takamine, the
Division Head. Uh ... we had preliminary discussions prior to having this item posted.
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and I think did
And I will tell you that they, after our discussions, they made every effort
g forward a revise d
their best to whittle the original request. As you can see, we're passin
n dollars, and
proposed bill, and that the original proposed bill was close to 1.5 millio
cant progress
we're talking about a number of 1.1. So .. .I think there was some signifi
get that adjustment
there. And I appreciate their, their willingness to work with us to
statements by your
made. And there's additional areas, as mentioned in the previous
continue with a
Chair, that we'll look at those other areas and, and ...
g with us to get
cooperative ... dialog that we've had. So I appreciate you folks in workin
"aye".
that accomplished. With that, Members, all in favor signify by saying
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
the Members here present.
CHAIR KANE: Opposed? Let the record show it's unanimous with
illa.
Excused from vote are Committee Members Mateo, Molina, and Pontan

AYES:

Carro ll,
Counc ilmem bers Ander son,
Vice-C hair Hokam a, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

VOTE :

EXC.:

Johns on,

Tavar es,

Counc ilmem bers Mateo , Molin a, and Pontanilla.

MOTI ON CARR IED.
ACTI ON:

Recom mendi ng FIRST READ ING of revised bill and FILIN G of
communication.

st
the 31 of January, 2006.
CHAIR KANE: Members, this ends our...very ...hefty agenda
) . ..
Hearing no announcements, Members, this meeting is adjourned ... (gavel

ADJO URN:

6:36p .m.
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